
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Regular Meeting 

City Hall, Cumberland 

 

DATE:    August 13, 2019 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. 5:30 p.m. - Convene in Open Session for the purpose of closing the meeting for an Executive 

Session pursuant to Section 3-305(b)(4) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code 

of Maryland to discuss development proposals for the East Side School site. 

2. Executive Session 

OPEN SESSION 

1. 6:15 p.m. - Reconvene into Open Session 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary Statement of Closed Meetings  

Presentations 

1. Certificate of Recognition presented to Kyle Blake, Chairperson of the 2019 Lambda Car Club 

International Grand Invitational, expressing appreciation for bringing the collector car national 

event to Cumberland.  

Director's Reports 

(A) Engineering 

Engineering Department monthly report for July, 2019 

(B) Public Works 

Maintenance Division monthly reports for June & July, 2019 



(C) Fire 

Fire Department monthly report for July, 2019 

(D) Utilities - Treatment Plants 

Utilities-Treatment Plants & Central Services monthly reports for June, 2019 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Closed Session Minutes of June 4, 2019 

2. Approval of the Work Session Minutes of May 29, 2019 

3. Approval of the Special Public Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2019 

Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

Ordinance 3856 (2nd and 3rd readings) - to repeal and reenact Section 13-105 of the City 

Code pertaining to the parking of trucks, trailers and other similar vehicles and equipment 

on public streets 

Ordinance 3857 (2nd and 3rd readings) - amending the official Zoning Map in Section 25-1 

of the City Code (ZMA #12-04) to rezone five properties located at 701-713 Elm Street 

from R-U (Urban Residential) to B-C (Business Commercial) 

New Business 

(A) Resolutions 

Resolution No. R2019-03 - granting the Cumberland Outdoor Club a property tax credit for 

the 2019-2020 tax year 

Resolution No. R2019-04 - granting the Allegany County Animal Shelter Management 

Foundation a property tax credit for the tax years 2016-2017 through 2019-2020 

(B) Ordinances 

Ordinance 3858 (1st reading) - providing for the issuance and sale of an aggregate principal 

amount not to exceed $3,800,000 in General Obligation Bonds, to be known as the 

"Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bonds, 2019 Series B," through 

the Community Development Administration (CDA), to be used for financing or 

refinancing costs of Projects defined in the Bond, funding a portion of a capital reserve 

fund and/or other reserves required by the Administration, and/or paying issuance and 

other costs related to the Bonds  

(C) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Order No. 26,488 - authorizing a Special Taxing District tax exemption for 15 South Liberty 

Street in the amount of $520.30 for the 2018-2019 tax years. 

Order No. 26,489 - adopting a revised Employee Handbook for Full-Time Non-Union 

Employees 



Order No. 26,490 - appointing Robert Godfrey to the Board of Commissioners for the 

Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland for a five year term, effective November 

1, 2019 through October 31, 2024 

Order No. 26,491 - authorizing the abatement of taxes and utilities owed on City-owned 

property at 607 Maryland Ave. 

Order No. 26,492 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Robert L. and Shiela S. Metz, 

pertaining to 13 Pennsylvania Avenue has been fully paid and satisfied 

Order No. 26,493- authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Dollie Catherine Derlan, 

pertaining to 304 Virginia Avenue has been fully paid and satisfied 

Order No. 26,494 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Gregory and Shawnee L. 

McElfish pertaining to 114-116 Oak Street has been fully paid and satisfied 

Order No. 26,495 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Shirley L. McDonald 

pertaining to 128 Springdale Street has been fully paid and satisfied 

Order No. 26,496 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Larry and Samantha Moon 

pertaining to 208-210 Virginia Avenue has been fully paid and satisfied 

Order No. 26,497 - authorizing a Special Taxing District exemption of $832.50 for 27 N. 

Centre Street for the 2019/2020 Tax year 

Order No. 26,498 - authorizing the abatement of 2019/2020 taxes for City-owned properties at 

Bishop Walsh Rd., Eleanor Terr., and Seneca Ave (cell tower properties) 

Order No. 26,499 - authorizing the abatement of taxes for the 2019 tax year for various City-

owned properties 

Order No. 26,500 - authorizing the sole source purchase of two (2) Reciprocating Skimmer 

Systems for the Water Filtration Plant, in the amount of $41,233.00, from Xylem Water 

Solutions USA, Inc. 

Order No. 26,501 - authorizing the sole source purchase of nine (9) Peristaltic Chemical 

Metering Pumps for the Water Filtration Plant in the total amount of $29,545.00, from 

the T.E. Byerly Company, Inc. 

Order No. 26,502 - authorizing the waiver of permit fees for CDBG improvement projects at 

the Riverside and Baltimore Avenue YMCA facilities 

Order No. 26,503 - authorizing the waiver of permit fees for CDBG sidewalk improvements 

around Fort Cumberland Homes by the Cumberland Housing Group 

Order No. 26,504 - declaring a 2004 Ford Crown Victoria (VIN No. 2FAFP71W64X13543) 

as surplus and authorizing its disposal 



Order No. 26,505 - authorizing execution of a Letter of Agreement with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc. 

(LSF) pertaining to the CSO Storage Facility at the WWTP Project (1-10-WWTP), 

setting forth terms by which the City shall grant LSF a 102 working day extension of the 

substantial completion date under terms of the original contract 

Order No. 26,506 - authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the contract with The EADS Group for 

additional engineering design services to address an additional scope of work for the New 

Baltimore Street Town Center Project (12-16-M) in the increased amount of $311,450, 

bringing the total contract amount to $626,246    

Order No. 26,507 - authorizing Change Order No. 5 to the contract with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc. 

for the Phase 1 CSO Storage Facility at WWTP Project (01-10-WWTP) for an increased 

amount of $2,820.83 and 102 additional non-compensable working days, bringing the 

new total contract amount to $26,364,856.88 

Order No. 26,508 - rescinding Order No. 26,426 authorizing execution of a Cooperation 

Agreement pertaining to River Bend Court, LP and authorizing execution of Cooperation 

Agreements with The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland to update and 

standardize the terms of public housing development agreements for Banneker Gardens, 

River Bend Court, LP, Wills Creek View, LP, Fort Cumberland Homes, John F. Kennedy 

Homes, Jane Frazier Village, Queen City Tower, and Willow Valley Apartments  

Letters / Petitions 

1. Letter from Terri Ann Lowery requesting permission to hold the 2019 Great Allegany Run 

(GAR) on Saturday, October 5, 2019 

2. Letter from Bonita Austin on behalf of the Carver Community Center Board of Directors 

requesting a property tax waiver for the 2019-2020 tax year for property owned by Carver 

Community Center at 340 Frederick Street 

3. Letter from Sean and Kristie Thomas requesting to hold the 70th Annual South Cumberland 

Halloween Parade on Wednesday, October 30, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Engineering Department monthly report for July, 2019 

  



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Page 1 of 5
8/9/2019

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

2008 05-08-S Evitts Creek CSO Upgrades Phase 
III (gravity sewer under railroad)

Replacement of CSO line connecting 
Evitts Creek Pump Station effluent with 
gravity line that parallels the Canal 
Towpath.  Said gravity line is being 
replaced under project 17-03-S(1).

Design NO CHANGE  This project has been complicated because of 
location of the sewer lines deep under the CSX Yards. The 
project has not been funded through MDE which will prevent 
us from moving forward. Engineering will continue to apply for 
funds and present this project at PACE until it is funded.

RLS 5/15/2019

2010 01-10-WWTP CSO Storage Facility At WWTP CSO storage and handling facility in 
accordance with LTCP

Construction Leak testing of pumphouse and CSO storage cells complete, 
except for cell 3, which has started.  Backfilling proceeding as 
exterior waterproofing progresses.  Substantial completion 
delay has been resolved.  Overall progress is about 79% 
complete, based on latest pay application.

PJD 82/19

2013 1-13-FPM Flood Control System Concrete 
Repairs

Repairs to various points of FCS system 
per USACOE inspection

Design UPDATE - Project is still on hold pending MDE review of EAP 
for Dry Run. A grant application was submitted for the project 
through MDE will hear results in May 2020.  Additionally, 
started USACE Section 408 request for floodwall extensions.

RLS/MDI 8/5/2019

2013 4-13-SWM Avirett Development at 12313 
Messick Road

Development at Messick Road, north of 
the proposed Chessie Federal Credit 
Union site.

Design NO CHANGE - Currently not a high priority project. PJD 8/2/2019

2013 12-13-FPM Flood Control Encroachment Tree 
Project

Removal of Trees along Flood Wall and 
Levees per requirements of US Army 
Corps of Engineers specifications (See 
also Project 2-17-FPM)

Construction UPDATE Will be closing contract out because shipping 
container is blocking access to trees to be removed to 
complete project.

PTE 8/2/2019

2014 04-14-WWTP Sludge Screening Study/Design Study to select the best alternative to 
keep rags out of the recently cleaned and 
modified digester because the 
modifications will make it impossible to 
revive rags in the future.

Design NO CHANGE Need/Benefit of the project is being reevaluated, 
and for now the project is on hold.   Design is complete and the 
project will remain on this report for the time being.

RLS 4/2/2018

2014 13-14-M Mechanic Street Access Road 
Improvement Project

Repaving and ADA ramp improvements 
to the section Mechanic Street from I-68 
to Bedford Street.  Includes 
improvements to the block of Bedford 
Street from N. Centre to N. Mechanic 
Street and Baltimore Street to the Bridge.  

Construction As per the Status Report of July 26, 2019, the persentage 
complete = Cost 54.52%, Time 48.75%. All concrete work has 
been completed. The next project progress meeting is 
scheduled for August 7, 2019 at 1:30 PM.

JRD 8/6/2019

2014 19-14-M Greene Street Complete Street Plan Planning Study for Greene Street Planning NO CHANGE - The  Design Report from Alta Planning + 
Design was submitted and presented to the Mayor and City 
Council.   The plan to start work on Construction Funding 
Applications has been delayed because of the Baltimore Street 
Project, which would have been competing for the same funds.  
This project still needs to be done and should be a priority in 
the future. 

RLS 6/1/2017

Capital Projects July 31, 2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Page 2 of 5
8/9/2019

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects July 31, 2019

2015 9-15-M Potomac River Walk The Study Phase of this project is being 
done through the Cumberland MPO and 
consists of a Walk / Trail for pedestrians 
and bikes along the Potomac River 
between Wills Creek and the YMCA

Study NO CHANGE -This project has been turned over to Canal 
Place.  Engineering Services for Design were received.  
Recommendation from the committee was to award to CEC.

KAR 8/9/2019

                2015 18-15-S CSO Water Quality Analysis Base line data collection for analysis of 
future CSO needs after CSO Storage is 
on line.

Planning NO CHANGE Project continues. Stream sampling ongoing on 
a monthly basis pre storage and post storage. Three staff were 
certified for sampling in April.

RJK 8/9/2019

2015 19-15-M WWTP & Collection System Asset 
Management Plan

Development of an Asset Management 
Plan

Planning UPDATE   Asset Management Program/Capital Improvement 
implementation. Dashboard development and Workforce app 
beiginning to be used. Proposal received for FY20 work to 
include Survey 123 and Collector.

RJK 8/9/2019

2015 21-15-M Washington Street Lighting Install decorative lighting along 
Washington Street

Complete First Phase of project complete.  Electric Conduit has been 
installed.  Street has been milled and paved.  Reimbursement 
was submitted to MD for the release of State Bind Funds. 

KAR 4/11/2018

2015 23-15-M Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
Modernization and Implementation

Update FIRMs and the Floodplain 
Ordinance, and conduct an outreach to 
the community to apprise landowners of 
the impact of those changes.

Planning NO CHANGE - The Letter of Final Determination date is now 
October, 2018, with a projected effective date of April, 2019.

PJD 1/3/2019

2016 12-16-M Baltimore Street Access 
Improvement - Final Design

The purpose of the New Baltimore Street 
Town Center project is to reopen and 
improve Baltimore Street, which is 
currently configured as a pedestrian mall, 
to vehicular traffic while maintaining 
elements of the mall.

Design Awaiting EADS response to our request to provide reasons for 
their request for an increase in the value of their contract for 
the design effort.

PJD 7/1/2019

2016 17-16-M Stage Renovations at Liberty Street 
Stage

Replace wood stage with Concrete Design NO CHANGE - This project would be unnecessary if the 
Baltimore Street Access project is executed. The project will 
remain on this list until the Baltimore Street project moves to 
construction.

RLS 5/15/2019

2016 18-16-BR John J. McMullen, Bridge No. A-C-01 
Repairs

Bridge Repair Design NO CHANGE - This project is being placed on hold due to 
needs at other bridges. Once Baltimore Street and 
Cumberland Street are replaced, this project will proceed.

RLS 12/4/2018

2016 19-16-S 78" Parallel Pipeline from Mill Race to 
CSO

78" Pipeline to CSO tank in accordance 
with Consent Decree

Design UPDATE - We have gained access to the Bohrer property to 
allow surveying and archeology work to begin. The final design 
proposal will be submitted to the City by WRA on 8/7.

RLS 8/5/2019

2017 2-17-FPM Flood Control Encroachment removal 
Project

The City as the Local Sponsor of the 
Flood Control Project is expected to 
maintain the easements along the Flood 
Control Project, however the area along 
Wills Creek and other areas were never 
given any comments until the Corps of 
Engineers standards changed.  
Completion of this project is necessary to 
allow the City to get a Satisfactory rating 
on its annual Flood Control Inspections.

Planning NO CHANGE - This project has been delayed because of 
other work, but must be done.  A tree removal project has 
been bid out and a contractor selected to do the work of 
removing trees in the encroachment area.

RLS 7/11/2018



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Page 3 of 5
8/9/2019

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects July 31, 2019

2017 3-17-M Route 51 Bridge 12" Waterline 
Replacement

Replace water line on bridge as part of 
SHA Bridge Deck Project

Construction NO CHANGE -  The contract for the bridge replacement has 
been awarded but the water line is not expected to be replaced 
until FY21 due to construction phasing. 

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 8-17-M Baseline Water Quality Sampling 
Evitts Creek Water Company

Western Pennsylvania Conservancy to 
provide detailed technical and scientific 
consulting to the ECWC including: Habitat 
Characterization and Baseline Water 
Quality Sampling.

Construction NO CHANGE Spring sampling took place May 21, 2019.  Fall 
sampling will take place around October 2019.

RJK 8/9/2019

2017 18-17-M Maryland Avenue Development This is not and Engineering Project, but 
included here to cover future department 
work with the development.

Design NO CHANGE- The department is supporting Cumberland 
Gateway LLC with historical records and will review stormwater 
design in the future.

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 19-17-M Recycle Coach App Smart phone app for recycling schedules Planning NO CHANGE RJK 8/9/2019

2017 20-17-WFP Return on Environment Plan Bedford County Comp Plan - Optional 
localized study

Study NO CHANGE RJK 8/9/2019

2017 21-17-PSB Public Safety Building Underground 
Storage Tank Removal

Heating Oil Underground Storage Tank 
(UST) - Not in use/reviewing removal 
option

Planning NO CHANGE RJK 8/9/2019

2017 24-17-S Investigation of Floodwall Underdrain 
Leak at Valley Street Bridge

Ascertain the source of the sewage that is 
leaking into the floodwall under drain 
noted at an under drain box about 90 feet 
upstream of the Valley Street Bridge, and 
develop a plan and cost estimate to effect 
repairs.

Planning NO CHANGE - No flow has been seen in manhole, waiting for 
Will's Creek water level to lower to reinspect. Leak appears to 
have been addressed by removing Burgmeier Septic. The 
underdrain pump has been removed and not odor is being 
detected. The situation will continue to be evaluated.

RLS 5/15/2019

2017 29-17-UTIL VOID See 19-15-M VOID
2017 30-17-WWTP 40 CFR 441 Compliance - Dental 

Dischargers
Collection of 1-time compliance reports 
from dental offices that remove amalgam. 

Planning NO CHANGE Thirteen (13) dental offices have returned their 1-
time compliance report to date.  Dental offices have until July 
2020 to comply with this new Federal regulation.

RJK 8/9/2019

2017 31-17-W Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water 
Main Replacement

Prior to designing the water main 
replacement a more detailed Water Model 
analysis of the City's system will be done 
to make sure the issues are being 
properly addressed.  Design will follow.

Design Kickoff meeting with Bennet Brewer and Associates to be 
scheduled as soon as award of contract is issued.

PJD 8/2/2019

2018 02-18-RE Cavanaugh Ball Field Lighting Project Purchase and installation of new MUSCO 
lighting system planned for installation

Complete COMPLETE Lights have been installed all new conduit and 
wire was installed.  

KAR 5/14/2019

2018 04-18-SWM Grand Avenue Gas Line Columbia Gas project on Grand Avenue Planning Columbia Gas project KAR 12/12/2018
2018 08-18-BR Cumberland Street Bridge 

Replacement
This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Design UPDATE - FHWA has approved project. Currently waiting for 
MDOT to provide notice to proceed to Jacobs/EBA to begin 
design work.

RLS 8/5/2019

2018 09-18-BR Baltimore Street Bridge Replacement This project will replace the bridge 
structure.

Design UPDATE - Temporary bridge repair work is underway while 
WTB continues working on the preliminary investigation stages 
of the project.

RLS 8/5/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Page 4 of 5
8/9/2019

Order Project No. Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated 
By

Date of 
Update

Capital Projects July 31, 2019

2018 21-18-WWTP Repaint Primary Clarifier Equipment This project includes the repainting of the 
primary clarifier equipment at the WWTP. 
The steel equipment will be prepared and 
painted, as well as the effluent channels. 
Two primary clarifiers and two thickener 
stations will be repaired

Construction UPDATE -  Work on the final primary clarifier is underway and 
scheduled to be completed in August

RLS 8/5/2019

2018 22-18-M Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Contract documents for the FY20 garbage 
and recycling collection bid process

Planning UPDATE New schedule in effect! RJK 8/9/2019

2018 23-18-WWTP  FY 2019 MDE Energy Grant
Optimization of the Aeration System 
at the WRF

Application through MDE for energy 
grants for WWTP or WFPs

Construction Bidding UPDATE MDE Approval Letter dated June 20. RJK 8/9/2019



City of Cumberland, Maryland
Engineering Division - Monthly Report

Page 5 of 5
8/9/2019

Order Department Program/Project Name Description Phase Comments Updated By
Date of 
Update

PUBLIC WORKS Curbside Recycling Curbside recycling program started in the 
City of Cumberland July 1, 2014

Ongoing UPDATE Recycling promotion through out the City (Libraries and 
NNO). 

RJK 9-Aug-19

PUBLIC WORKS Solid Waste Management 
Board

County Board for planning and discussion 
of County-wide recycling and solid waste 
issues

Ongoing NO CHANGE
Meeting monthly.  

Planning and budgeting for HHW collection to take place October 
5 at County Fairgrounds 9 AM to 2 PM. 

RJK 9-Aug-19

WWTP Cumberland Pretreatment 
Program

City Ordinance No. 3251 regulates 
industrial and significant dischargers to 
Cumberland's sewer and POTW.  There 
are 4 Significant Industrial Users (SIUs) 
permitted under this Ordinance.  Program 
may also regulate non-significant users 
that pose a threat or cause problems to 
the system or POTW.

Regulatory UPDATE
 WMHS inspection took place July 23.

  

 

 

RJK 9-Aug-19

WWTP POTW NPDES Permit Requirements for compliance Annual/As 
Needed

NO CHANGE - Renewal application mailed June 1, 2018. Awaiting 
MDE communication/site visits.

RJK 9-Aug-19

WWTP/CSO CSO Consent Decree 
Compliance Reporting

Reporting/Inspections Semi-
Annual/As 
Needed

NO CHANGE RJK 9-Aug-19

Watershed Evitts Creek Steering 
Committee

Cross-jurisdictional committee working on 
source water protection efforts.

UPDATE
Forest Management Plan complete/ ECSC recommended the 
Plan be forwarded to the M&CC for adoption.

RJK 9-Aug-19

STC Shade Tree Commission Care of trees along city rights of way and 
in parks.

NA UPDATE
Doing routine summer tree care (removal and pruning) 

PTE 2-Aug-19

Evitts Creek 
Water Company 

Forest Stewardship Plan 
(aka Resource 
Management Plan)

Management of the forested property 
around Lakes Gordon and Koon

NA UPDATE - Evitts Creek Steering Committee voted to recommend 
approval for plan.  Plan will then go to Mayor and City Council for 
approval and then to PA DCNR for approval.

PTE 2-Aug-19

Program Projects Update July 31, 2019



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Maintenance Division monthly reports for June & July, 2019 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION REPORT  

June & July 2019 

 
 

Street Maintenance Report 

 

Parks & Recreation Maintenance Report 

 

Fleet Maintenance Report 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PUBLIC WORKS/MAINTENANCE 
STREET BRANCH 

MONTHLY REPORT 
JUNE 2019 

 
 POTHOLES AND COMPLAINTS 

• Potholed 12 Streets & 1 Alley using 18 tons of hot mix asphalt 
 

 PERMANENT PATCHING 
• Patched 4 areas using 9 tons of hot mix asphalt 

 
 UTILITY HOLES 

• Repaired 4 water utility holes using 14 tons of hot mix asphalt 
• Repaired 4 sewer utility holes using 6.5 tons of hot mix asphalt 
• Repaired 1 wastewater plant hole using 3 tons of hot mix asphalt 

 
 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS/STREET NAME SIGNS 

• Installed/Repaired 8 Traffic Control Signs 
• Removed 2 Handicap signs 
• Painted 4 curbs 
• Installed delineators on Eastern Ave near inlet 

 
 STREET SWEEPING 

• 487 miles  
• 41 loads 

 
 MISCELLANOUS 

• Completed 32 Work Orders 
• Cleaned Underpass, McMullen Bridge, Washington St Bridge, Fayette St 

Bridge, Cumberland St Bridge & Welch Ave. drainage ditch 4 times.  
• Picked up 4 dead animals 
• Received thermo/pavement marking training for 1 day 
• Picked up trash/discarded items on 2 occasions 
• Performed emergency flagging operation on N Mechanic St for sink hole 
• Set up traffic control and no parking signs for multiple events 
• Performed ditch work @ 2 separate locations 
• Applied scratch coat of asphalt with paver on Cumberland St 
• Cleaned Municipal Center shop twice 

 
 

STREET MAINTENANCE - JUNE 2019 6/3-6/7 6/10-6/14 6/17-6/21 6/24-6/28 TOTAL 



 
 

SERVICE REQUEST COMPLETED    11 6 8 7 32 

PAVING PERFORMED TONS     54 27 81 

CONCRETE WORK CY         0 

UTILITY HOLES REPAIRED  

WATER     1 4 5 

SEWER     1 3 4 

CY           

TONS     2.5 21.0 23.5t 

POTHOLES FILLED 

STREETS 6 3 3   12 

ALLEYS     1   1 

DAYS 2 1 1   4 

Cold Mix         0 

TONS 5.0 7.0 6.0   18 

PERMANENT PATCH 
CY         0 

TONS 5 4     9 

COMPLAINTS COMPLETED 

          0 

CY         0 

TONS         0 

TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED   8       8 

STREET NAME SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED           0 

HANDICAPPED SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED/REMOVED 

          0 

          0 

  2       2 

PAINTING PERFORMED 

BLUE         0 

YELLOW         0 

RED 2       2 

PAVEMENT MARKINGS INSTALLED No.         0 

STREET CLEANING 
LOADS 8 10 12 11 41 

Miles 115 120 124 128 487 

SWEEPER DUMPS HAULED TO LANDFILL TONS   6.0 2.0   41 

SALT BARRELLS  - PICK UP, FILL DAYS         0 

CLEANED BALTIMORE ST. UNDERPASS   1 1 1 1 4 

CLEAN SNOW EQUIPMENT Days          0 

BRUSH REMOVAL/TREE WORK Areas 1 1 3   5 

Check Drains/Clean Debris DAYS   1     1 

LEAF PICK UP Loads         0 
  

Picked up trash/discarded furniture on 2 different occasions 

Performed emergency flagging operation on N Mechanic St for sink hole 

Set up traffic control and no parking signs for multiple events 

Received thermo training for 1 day 

Applied scratch coat of asphalt with paver on Cumberland St 

Performed ditch work @ 2 separate locations 

Picked up 4 dead animals 

Cleaned Municipal Center shop twice 

  



 

PUBLIC WORKS/MAINTENANCE 
 PARKS & RECREATION 

MONTHLY REPORT 
JUNE 2019 

 

 
 Constitution Park , Mason’s Complex and Area Parklets 

o Cleaned up garbage 3 times a week 

o Prepared pavilions & Activities Building for rentals 

o Mowed & trimmed @ Constitution Park  13 days 

o Mowed & trimmed @ Mason’s Complex 10 days 

o Mowed & trimmed parklets 10 days 

 

 Ball Fields 

o Flynn Field 

 Drug 4 times 

 Spiked 1 time 

 Lined 14 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o Nonneman Field 

 Drug 2 times 

 Spiked 1 time 

 Lined 4 times 

 Mowed 2 times 

o Northcraft Field 

 Drug 2 times 

 Spiked 1 time 

 Lined 7 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o Cavanaugh Field 

 Drug 3 times 

 Lined 9 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o JC Field 

 Lined 4 times 

 Mowed 2 times 

 

 

 

 

o Long Field 



 Drug 6 times 

 Spiked 2 times 

 Lined 15 times 

 Mowed 4 times 

o Abrams Field 

 Drug 3 times 

 Spiked 1 time 

 Lined 15 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o Galaxy Soccer Field 

 Lined 2 times 

 Mowed 2 times 

o Bowers Football Field 

 Mowed 2 times 

 

 Miscellaneous Work  

o Performed basic housekeeping @ Municipal Building 

o Cleaned the Craft House & Activities Building 

o Performed preventative maintenance on mowers, trimmers & blowers 

o Prepared feed & bedding for ducks & geese @ the Duck Pond 

o Cleaned & performed preventative maintenance on Park & Rec vehicles 

o Made repairs to bathrooms @ Mason’s Complex & Constitution Park  

o Worked overtime on weekends to pick up trash @ all parks & parklets 

o Worked overtime @ Constitution Park for concerts & movie 

o Picked up new trash cans from Schroeder Industries 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fleet Maintenance 

June 2019 

  

  Total Fleet Maintenance Projects 170                            

    Central Services 4 

    Code Enforcement 1 

    DDC 0 

  
 

Engineering 4 

  
 

Fire 6 

  
 

Flood 6 

    Municipal Parking 0 

    P & R Maintenance 13 

  
 

Police 26 

  
 

Public Works 2 

  
 

Sewer 1 

  
 

Snow Removal 0 

  
 

Street Maintenance 39 

  
 

Vehicle Maintenance  20 

  
 

Water Distribution 30 

  
 

Water Filtration 0 

  
 

WWTP 1 

    Scheduled Preventive Maintenance 11 

    Field Service Calls 6 

  

  Total Work Orders Submitted 33 

  

  Risk Management Claims 0 

  

  Fork Lift Inspections 0 

      



PUBLIC WORKS/MAINTENANCE 
STREET BRANCH 

MONTHLY REPORT 
JULY 2019 

 
 

 POTHOLES AND COMPLAINTS 
• Potholed 28 Streets & 9 Alleys using 38.5 tons of hot mix asphalt 

 
 PERMANENT PATCHING 

• Patched 3 areas using 19.75 tons of hot mix asphalt 
 

 UTILITY HOLES 
• Repaired 15 water utility holes using 32.5 tons of hot mix asphalt 
• Repaired 7 sewer utility holes using 28 tons of hot mix asphalt 
• Repaired 1 sewer utility hole using 9 yards of concrete 

 
 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS/STREET NAME SIGNS 

• Installed/Repaired 9 Traffic Control Signs 
• Installed 3 Handicap signs and removed 1 Handicap sign 
• Painted 17 curbs 

 
 STREET SWEEPING 

• 511 miles  
• 40 loads 

 
 MISCELLANOUS 

• Completed 63 Work Orders 
• Set up traffic control and worked overtime for Fireworks @ Constitution 

Park 
• Set out traffic control for damaged section of Valley Rd 
• Repaired large section of sidewalk along Greene St @ West Side School 
• Cleaned Underpass, McMullen Bridge, Washington St Bridge, Fayette St 

Bridge, Cumberland St Bridge & Welch Ave. drainage ditch 4 times.  
• Picked up 6 dead animals 
• Picked up trash/discarded items on 4 occasions 
• Set up traffic control and no parking signs for multiple events 
• Three employees attended required Traffic Manager’s Course @ LaVale 

SHA 
• Cleaned Municipal Center shop twice 

 



STREET MAINTENANCE - JULY 2019 7/1-7/3 7/8-7/12 7/15-7/19 7/22-7/26 7/29-7/31 TOTAL 

SERVICE REQUEST COMPLETED    5 26 14 11 7 63 

PAVING PERFORMED TONS           0 

CONCRETE WORK CY           0 

UTILITY HOLES REPAIRED  

WATER 2 9 4     15 

SEWER   2 5   1 8 

CY         9.00 9 

TONS 3.0 21.5 36.0     60.5t 

POTHOLES FILLED 

STREETS 1 11 5 6 5 28 

ALLEYS   4 3 2   9 

DAYS 1 4 3 3 1 12 

Cold Mix           0 

TONS 1.0 12.0 8.0 14.5 3.0 38.5t 

PERMANENT PATCH 
CY           0 

TONS 10.5t     7 2.25t 19.75t 

COMPLAINTS COMPLETED 

            0 

CY           0 

TONS           0 

TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED   2 2     5 9 

STREET NAME SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED             0 

HANDICAPPED SIGNS 
REPAIRED/INSTALLED/REMOVED 

            0 

  2 1       3 

  1         1 

PAINTING PERFORMED 

BLUE 4 1     3 8 

YELLOW           0 

RED 4       5 9 

PAVEMENT MARKINGS INSTALLED No.           0 

STREET CLEANING 
LOADS 7 13 10 7 3 40 

Miles 77 183 115 108 28 511 

SWEEPER DUMPS HAULED TO LANDFILL TONS     1.0 18.0   19 

SALT BARRELLS  - PICK UP, FILL DAYS           0 

CLEANED BALTIMORE ST. UNDERPASS   1 1 1 1   4 

CLEAN SNOW EQUIPMENT Days            0 

BRUSH REMOVAL/TREE WORK Areas 1   1 1 2 5 

Check Drains/Clean Debris DAYS         1 1 

LEAF PICK UP Loads           0 
  

Set up traffic control and worked overtime for Fireworks @ Constitution Park 

Picked up trash/discarded furniture on 4 different occasions 

Set out traffic control for damaged section of Valley St 

Set up traffic control and no parking signs for multiple events 

Repaired large section of sidewalk along Greene St by West Side School 

Three employees attended required Traffic Manager's Course @ LaVale SHA  

Mowed with street tractor on overtime 7 days 

Picked up 6 dead animals 

Cleaned Municipal Center shop twice 

 



 
 

PUBLIC WORKS/MAINTENANCE 
 PARKS & RECREATION 

MONTHLY REPORT 
JULY 2019 

 

 
 

 Constitution Park , Mason’s Complex and Area Parklets 

o Cleaned up garbage 3 times a week 

o Prepared pavilions & Activities Building for rentals 

o Mowed & trimmed @ Constitution Park  18 days 

o Mowed & trimmed @ Mason’s Complex 10 days 

o Mowed & trimmed parklets 15 days 

 

 Ball Fields 

o Flynn Field 

 Drug 5 times 

 Lined 12 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o Nonneman Field 

 Lined 3 times 

 Mowed 2 times 

o Northcraft Field 

 Drug 1 time 

 Lined 4 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o Cavanaugh Field 

 Drug 1 time 

 Lined 5 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o Long Field 

 Drug 3 times 

 Lined 8 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

o Abrams Field 

 Lined 5 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

 

 

 



o Galaxy Soccer Field 

 Lined 3 times 

 Mowed 3 times 

 

 

o Northcraft Soccer Field 

 Lined 2 times 

o Nonneman Soccer Field 

 Lined 2 times 

o Nonneman Jr Soccer Field 

 Lined 2 times 

o Bowers Football Field 

 Lined 3 times 

 Mowed 4 times 

 

 Miscellaneous Work  

o Performed basic housekeeping @ Municipal Building 

o Cleaned the Craft House & Activities Building 

o Performed preventative maintenance on mowers, trimmers & blowers 

o Prepared feed & bedding for ducks & geese @ the Duck Pond 

o Cleaned & performed preventative maintenance on Park & Rec vehicles 

o Made repairs to bathrooms @ Mason’s Complex & Constitution Park  

o Worked overtime on weekends to pick up trash @ all parks & parklets 

o Worked overtime @ Constitution Park for concerts & movie 

o Picked up new trash cans from Schroeder Industries 

o Painted new marble courts for tournament 

 

 
 

 

 

Fleet Maintenance 



 July 2019 

  

  Total Fleet Maintenance Projects 200                          

    Central Services 12 

    Code Enforcement 0 

    DDC 0 

  
 

Engineering 3 

  
 

Fire 13 

  
 

Flood 4 

    Municipal Parking 0 

    P & R Maintenance 15 

  
 

Police 30 

  
 

Public Works 3 

  
 

Sewer 20 

  
 

Snow Removal 0 

  
 

Street Maintenance 31 

  
 

Vehicle Maintenance  23 

  
 

Water Distribution 20 

  
 

Water Filtration 0 

  
 

WWTP 0 

    Scheduled Preventive Maintenance 17 

    Field Service Calls 9 

  

  Total Work Orders Submitted 60 

  

  Risk Management Claims 0 

  

  Fork Lift Inspections 0 

      



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Fire Department monthly report for July, 2019 

  















Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Utilities-Treatment Plants & Central Services monthly reports for June, 2019 

  



TREATMENT PLANTS /

MONTHLY UTILITY REPORT

tuNE 2079

AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION - WFP

eo{{
(9

ao{{
E

\\++

AVERAGE DAILY PRODUCTION - WRF

(a
zo{{{(,
=o{{
E

!s ^i' ^l

EVENTS SUMMARY



Central Services - June 2OL9

o Citv Hall: Cleaned out boiler room. (Removed all trash and unnecessary items) Clogged
sink in second floor bathroom. Replaced LEDs in HR office and on second floor.

o Municipal Service Center: Made and installed hand rail on three sets of stairs per

OSHA inspection. Repaired lights in meter room of water department. Clogged drain in
meter room water department.

o Public Safety Buildine: Repaired outlets in police evidence processing room. Installed
new outlets and move refrigerator in fire department garage. Started on new MES room
in fire department garage. Repair phone line in police department office 2"d floor.
Repaired water leak in basement bathroom of fire station #2. Installed mag lock and key
pad on door in garage in Fire department. Cleaned out boiler room. (Removed all trash

and unnecessary items) Replaced bad control valve stage one of chiller. Built shelves in
garage at fire department.

. b.llgglDgpartmenl: Started working on replacing generator and electrical panel in
Police Command Post RV.

o Parks & Rec: Replaced the lights in snack bar at Park Pool. Worked on freezer in snack

bar at Park Pool. Replaced hand dryer at Park Pool bath house. Installed wireless

intercom at bottom of the stairs at Park Pool snack bar.

.@:Repairedandrep1acedout1etsinGeorgeStreetParking
Garage.

.@:Instal1new1ightpo1eandlightonMechanicSt.Repaired
cross walk heads at corner of Greene St. and Allegany St. that was hit by truck, buss or ?.

Reported street lights to P.E. to be repaired.

o Load tested generators.

o Monthly Safety Meeting



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Approval of the Closed Session Minutes of June 4, 2019 

  





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

2. Approval of the Work Session Minutes of May 29, 2019 

  















Item Attachment Documents: 

 

3. Approval of the Special Public Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2019 

  



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Special Public Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers 

 

DATE:    June 11, 2019 

 

 

I. Open Session  

1. 4:00 p.m. - Convene into Open Session 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

III. Roll Call 

PRESENT 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

Councilman Richard J. "Rock" Cioni 

Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 

Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

 

ABSENT: Councilman Seth Bernard 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey D. Rhodes, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; 

Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk 

 

IV. New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Mr. Cohen reviewed the one item on the Consent Agenda prior to vote, saying that the 

NDA (Non-Disclosure Agreement) sets forth certain conditions pertaining to the release 

of preliminary engineering studies regarding the Fayette and Washington Street Bridges.  

Mr. Cohen further stated that CSX will not authorize its release unless the Agreement is 



signed, so it must be signed to move forward, and added that CSX and the Wilson T. 

Ballard Company has already signed it.  

1. Order No. 26,459 - authorizing the execution of a Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure 

Agreement by and among CSX Transportation, Inc., The Wilson T. Ballard Company, 

and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland regarding certain information set forth in 

the Agreement in connection with the conduct of engineering feasibility studies regarding 

the Fayette and Washington Street Bridges. 

 

Mayor Morriss called for questions or comments, and a discussion followed.   

Mayor Morriss wanted to clarify that without this Agreement, CSX will not release the engineering 

studies and added that the City doesn’t have a choice but to sign it.  Mr. Cohen confirmed, saying though, 

that this is an instance where there is zero harm to the City. He added that this allows CSX to not share 

information it doesn’t want to share with third parties. 

Councilwoman Marchini stated that if this is specifically about the bridges, she wondered about CSX’s 

claim of no ownership. Mr. Cohen advised that this Agreement has nothing to do with ownership, that at 

this juncture we aren’t concerned with who was the owner, we’re attempting to resolve and clarify that 

matter with the Agreement, which will provide who owns them from here on out, which is the City. 

Councilman Cioni stated that to him it sounded like CSX is trying to protect something they own.  Mr. 

Cohen replied that this is not unusual for this type of Agreement, as they are trying to protect their 

historical data.  He added it was no surprise to him that they requested it. 

Mr. Rhodes asked Mr. Cohen if somewhere along the line he thought he could get a redacted version of 

the agreement to release.  Mr. Cohen confirmed that CSX will be providing a redacted version of the 

document after receipt of the engineering studies. 

Councilwoman Marchini wanted to clarify what constitutes “proprietary” information in this situation, 

and asked if CSX doesn’t own the bridges, what it is that needs to be protected.  Mayor Morriss 

responded, saying that without the NDA, the negotiations basically come to an end.  Mr. Cohen stated it’s 

proprietary because CSX owns the data, with Mayor Morriss adding that what CSX is concerned about is 

the design of the bridge; their people have assisted with designing the bridge structure, and that’s what’s 

proprietary. 

 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Item No. 1; Order No. 26,459 was made by 

Councilman Cioni, seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

 

V. Public Comments 

 None 

 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person. 

 



VI. Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 

 

          Minutes approved on ______________________ 

 

          Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor ____________________________ 

 

          ATTEST: Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk _________________________________ 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Ordinance 3856 (2nd and 3rd readings) - to repeal and reenact Section 13-105 of the City 

Code pertaining to the parking of trucks, trailers and other similar vehicles and equipment 

on public streets 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 3856 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, 

MARYLAND, ENTITLED, “AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND REENACT SECTION 13-

105 OF THE CITY CODE (1991 EDITION) PERTAINING TO THE PARKING OF TRUCKS, 

TRAILERS AND OTHER SIMILAR VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT ON PUBLIC 

STREETS.”  

 

SECTION 1:   BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, that sections 13-105 of the Code of the City of Cumberland 

(1991 Edition) is repealed and reenacted and shall read as follows: 

 

Sec. 13-105. - Parking of trucks, trailers, etc. on public streets. 

 The purpose of this provision is to regulate the parking of trucks, trailers 

and other similar vehicles and equipment of a certain size upon public streets, 

alleys and ways. Said vehicles and equipment tend to block the view of other 

vehicles and have a negative impact upon the aesthetics of the City.  

 

It shall be unlawful to park or store any of the following vehicles, 

machinery and equipment on the streets, alleys and other public ways of the City: 

(1) Trucks or vans more than 10,000 pounds in gross vehicle weight; 

(2) Vehicles with more than two (2) axles; 

(3) Camping trailers, boat trailers or any other kind of trailers, 

regardless of whether they are connected to vehicles; 

(4) Motor homes; 

(5) Heavy machinery; 

(6) Farm equipment; 

(7) Vehicles more than twenty (20) feet in length or nine (9) feet in 

height;  

(8) Tow trucks with vehicles in tow;  

(9) Boats; and 

(10) Any other similar vehicles or equipment. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a reasonable period of time shall be 

permitted for the loading or unloading of such vehicles within 100 feet of the 

location where the unloading is taking place; provided, however, that movements 

of such vehicles within the aforesaid 100 feet will not serve to extend the time 

allowed for loading and unloading.  

  SECTION 2: AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall take 

effect upon the date of its passage. 

 

 Passed this _____ day of August, 2019. 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

       Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________________ 

 Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

2. Ordinance 3857 (2nd and 3rd readings) - amending the official Zoning Map in Section 

25-1 of the City Code (ZMA #12-04) to rezone five properties located at 701-713 Elm 

Street from R-U (Urban Residential) to B-C (Business Commercial) 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 3857 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, ENTITLED “AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL 

ZONING MAP REFERRED TO IN SECTION 25-1 OF THE CODE OF THE 

CITY OF CUMBERLAND (1991 EDITION) TO REZONE FIVE PROPERTIES 

LOCATED AT 701-713 ELM STREET, CITY OF CUMBERLAND, ALLEGANY 

COUNTY, MARYLAND FROM R-U (URBAN RESIDENTIAL) TO B-C 

(BUSINESS COMMERCIAL).” 

 

 WHEREAS, the properties which are the subject of this 

Ordinance are located at 701-713 Elm Street, are recorded 

among the Land Records of Allegany County, Maryland as 

indicated below, and are hereinafter referred to as the 

“Properties”: 

     Liber/Folio  

 Address   Reference  Tax ID No. 

 

 701 Elm St.  2332/93   04-011880 

 703 Elm St.  2332/93  04-011872 

 705 Elm St.  2332/97    04-025350 

 707 Elm   2353/67   04-018834 

 709 Elm St.  2329/252   04-034929 

 711-713 Elm St.  2348/401   04-037507 

 

WHEREAS, the Properties are currently zoned R-U (Urban 

Residential); 

WHEREAS, First Peoples Community Federal Credit Union 

filed an application requesting that the zoning for the 

Properties be changed to B-C (Business Commercial); 

WHEREAS, in anticipation of the proceedings before the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, City staff prepared a 

Cumberland Planning Commission Staff Report dated April 12, 

2019 (the “Staff Report”), a copy of which is attached 



  

hereto, recommending that the City’s Official Zoning Map be 

amended on the ground that there has been a substantial 

change in the character of the neighborhood in which the 

Properties are located; 

WHEREAS, the Staff Report includes the findings 

required by Section 4-204 of the Land Use Article of the 

Annotated Code of Maryland; 

WHEREAS, as required by the applicable provisions of 

the aforesaid Land Use Article, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission held a public hearing on this matter and, at the 

conclusion of the aforesaid hearing, voted 3-0 to pass a 

resolution recommending that the Official Zoning Map be 

amended and that the applicable zoning for the Properties 

be designated as B-C;  

WHEREAS, as required by Section 25-439(e) of the City 

of Cumberland Zoning Ordinance and the applicable 

provisions of Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, the Planning and Zoning Commission forwarded its 

recommendations to the Mayor and City Council for action; 

 WHEREAS, as required by Section 4-203 of the aforesaid 

Land Use Article and Section 25-439(f)(1) of the City of 

Cumberland Zoning Ordinance, the Mayor and City Council 

published notice of the time and place of the public 

hearing before them on the matter of the rezoning which is 



  

the subject of this Ordinance together with a summary of 

the proposed rezoning in The Cumberland Times News, a 

newspaper of general circulation in Allegany County and the 

City of Cumberland, once each week for two successive weeks 

with the first notice being published at least fourteen 

days before the hearing; 

WHEREAS, as required by Section 4-203 of the aforesaid 

Land Use Article and City of Cumberland Zoning Ordinance 

Section 25-439(g), a public hearing on the proposed 

rezoning was held before the Mayor and City Council on May 

21, 2019, at which public hearing all parties in interest 

and citizens of the City of Cumberland were permitted to be 

heard concerning the proposed rezoning; 

 WHEREAS, having considered the evidence presented, the 

Mayor and City Council adopted the findings set forth in 

the Staff Report; and 

 WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, the Mayor and City 

Council determined that the application for the rezoning of 

the Properties should be granted for the reasons set forth 

in the Staff Report.  

 NOW, THEREFORE: 

 SECTION 1: BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, that the application of First 

Peoples Community Federal Credit Union to rezone the 



  

Properties R-U (Urban Residential) to B-C (Business 

Commercial) is granted.  City staff is directed to correct 

the labeling on the Official Zoning Map to reflect that the 

Properties are zoned B-C.  

 SECTION 2.  AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this 

Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days from the date of 

its passage. 

PASSED this _____ day of August, 2019. 

 
      _____________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________  

Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

 
 

Dates of Publication of Public Hearing Notices:  

 
1st Reading: 

 

2nd & 3rd Readings: 

 

Effective Date: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

CUMBERLAND PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
ZMA 12-04 - 701-713 Elm Street – B-C Rezoning Application 

April 12, 2019 

 

Overview: 
Matthew S. Brewer, Bennett, Brewer & Associates, LLC, on behalf of First Peoples 

Community Federal Credit Union (FPCFCU), has made application to the Mayor and 

City Council for a Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA #12-04) regarding five (5) parcels of 

land located at 701-713 Elm Street in the City of Cumberland.  In accordance with 

Section 25-439 of the Cumberland City Code, the Planning Commission must conduct a 

public hearing on the application and provide a recommendation to the Mayor and City 

Council within forty-five (45) days of the hearing date. 

 

In summary, 701-713 Elm Street was formerly five (5) residential structures that 

FPCFCU purchased and razed for the purposes of constructing a free-standing, single 

story, credit union building with a drive through lane.  The subject area is currently zoned 

Urban Residential (R-U) and is bordered to the West and South by a large Business 

Commercial (B-C) zoning district.  The subject area is bordered to the East and North by 

the remainder of the current R-U zoning district.  

 

A zoning map amendment, not part of a comprehensive update, must be a result of a 

significant change in the character of the neighborhood or due to a mistake.  The 

applicant has provided information to support a change due to a significant change in the 

character of the neighborhood. 

 

 

Staff Review: 
 

City records do confirm that a significant change in the character of the neighborhood has 

occurred due to the large volume of demolitions of commercial and residential structures 

in the project area commonly referred to as the Maryland Avenue Project.  As a result of 

this project, the area has been enhanced as a commercial area that also includes Martins 

Plaza,  Auto Zone, Chick-A-Filet, Patrick’s Pub, and a yet to be developed 17 acre parcel 

owned by CSX Transportation.  Furthermore, the North end of the subject site lies just 

two (2) blocks from Interstate 68.   

 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

The applicant’s proposed use is consistent with a Business Commercial zoning district 

and a significant change in the character of the neighborhood is clearly evident.  As such, 

City staff recommends that the Planning Commission favorably consider the applicants 

request.  

Additionally, under the provisions of the Maryland Annotated Code, the Mayor and City 

Council must make a series of specific findings in making its decision regarding the 

proposed zoning.  A recommendation regarding these findings must be made by the 

Planning Commission.  The specific findings are outlined in the Annotated Code and in 



  

Section 25 of the Cumberland City Code.  Staff recommends the following findings be 

determined with respect to these statutory considerations: 

 

1. Population change:  Staff notes that the 2009 Comprehensive Plan Update calls 

for a 20% increase in the City’s population over the next 20 years.  The proposed 

zoning would provide for economic expansion of the city’s commercial base, 

thereby increasing employment opportunities, expanding the City’s tax base, and 

promoting population growth that could be consistent with the recommendations 

of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  On the proposed site, no structures were 

occupied and therefore, no decrease in population will occur as a direct result of 

the proposed zoning change. 

2. The availability of public facilities:  Public facilities in the City of Cumberland 

were designed to serve the City’s peak population of 39,483 in 1940.  With a 

current population of approximately 20,800, the Water Resources Element in the 

2009 Comprehensive Plan amendment indicated that adequate capacity exists 

within the city’s current public facilities to accommodate the city’s planned 

growth.  The subject property is already served by City water and sewer. 

3. Present & future transportation patterns:  The 2007 Cumberland Area Long 

Range Transportation Plan identified and scheduled transportation improvements 

necessary to serve planned growth and development in the community.  The 

subject property is directly accessed by Spring Street, which is considered a local 

street.  The potential traffic impacts of the proposed use are anticipated to be 

minor and would not reduce the level of service on the adjoining streets.  The 

property also has adequate off-street parking for the proposed uses. 

4. Compatibility with existing and proposed development for the area:   The 

current zoning and uses in the norther portion of the Maryland Avenue area are 

largely commercial in nature and influenced by the heavy use of Interstate 68.  

Other commercial uses are scattered around the area.  The proposed use is 

therefore consistent with and supportive of the existing mix of uses in that area. 

5. Relationship of the proposed amendment to the local jurisdiction’s plan:   

The proposed use as a financial institution would be a Permitted us in a B-C 

zoning district.  Additionally, the proposed use appears consistent with the 2009 

Comprehensive Plan and the City’s Economic Development Strategic Plan.   

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Resolution No. R2019-03 - granting the Cumberland Outdoor Club a property tax credit for 

the 2019-2020 tax year 

  



City of Cumberland 
- Maryland - 

RESOLUTION 
RESOLUTION NO.  2019-03 

 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, 

GRANTING THE CUMBERLAND OUTDOOR CLUB A PROPERTY TAX CREDIT FOR THE 

TAX YEAR 2019-2020, PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-302 OF THE TAX-PROPERTY ARTICLE 

OF THE ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND. 

 
WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is, by State Law, granted the authority to 

impose taxes upon the assessed valuation of property situated within the City of 

Cumberland against the owners of such property; and 

 

WHEREAS,  Section 9-302 of the Tax-Property Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland provides 

that a municipal corporation in Allegany County may grant, by law, a real and corporate 

property tax credit against certain property owners; and  

 

WHEREAS,  the Cumberland Outdoor Club is such a property owner designated in Section 9-302 of 

the Tax-Property Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Cumberland Outdoor Club has, pursuant to Section 9-301(e) (1), applied for the 

real and corporate property tax credit; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland desires to grant to the Cumberland 

Outdoor Club a real and corporate property tax credit against the municipal 

corporation property tax imposed on the Cumberland Outdoor Club for the tax year 

2019-2020.  

  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Cumberland Outdoor Club be and is hereby 

granted a real and corporate property tax credit against any and all municipal corporation property tax 

imposed upon it by the City of Cumberland for tax year 2019-2020. 
 

Given under our Hands and Seals this 13
th

 day of August, 2019, with the  

Corporate Seal of the City of Cumberland hereto attached,  

duly attested by the City Clerk. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 

 
Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

Mayor and City Council 
Of Cumberland 

 
 

Raymond M. Morriss 
Mayor 





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Resolution No. R2019-04 - granting the Allegany County Animal Shelter Management 

Foundation a property tax credit for the tax years 2016-2017 through 2019-2020 

  



City of Cumberland 
- Maryland - 

RESOLUTION 
RESOLUTION NO.  2019-04 

 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, 

GRANTING THE ALLEGANY COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER MANAGEMENT FOUNDATION 

A PROPERTY TAX CREDIT FOR THE TAX YEARS 2016-2017 THROUGH 2019-2020, 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 9-302 OF THE TAX-PROPERTY ARTICLE OF THE ANNOTATED 

CODE OF MARYLAND. 

 
WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is, by State Law, granted the authority to 

impose taxes upon the assessed valuation of property situated within the City of 

Cumberland against the owners of such property; and 

 

WHEREAS,  Section 9-302 of the Tax-Property Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland provides 

that a municipal corporation in Allegany County may grant, by law, a real and corporate 

property tax credit against certain property owners; and  

 

WHEREAS,  the Allegany County Animal Shelter Management Foundation is such a property 

owner designated in Section 9-302 of the Tax-Property Article of the Annotated Code 

of Maryland; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Allegany County Animal Shelter Management Foundation has, pursuant to Section 

9-301(e) (1), applied for the real and corporate property tax credit; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland desires to grant to the Allegany County 

Animal Shelter Management Foundation a real and corporate property tax credit 

against the municipal corporation property tax imposed on the Allegany County 

Animal Shelter Management Foundation for the tax years 2016-2017 through 2019-

2020.  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Allegany County Animal Shelter Management 

Foundation be and is hereby granted a real and corporate property tax credit against any and all municipal 

corporation property tax imposed upon it by the City of Cumberland for tax years 2016-2017 through 2019-

2020. 

Given under our Hands and Seals this 13
th

 day of August, 2019, with the  

Corporate Seal of the City of Cumberland hereto attached,  

duly attested by the City Clerk. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 

 
Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

Mayor and City Council 
Of Cumberland 

 
 

Raymond M. Morriss 
Mayor 





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Ordinance 3858 (1st reading) - providing for the issuance and sale of an aggregate principal 

amount not to exceed $3,800,000 in General Obligation Bonds, to be known as the 

"Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bonds, 2019 Series B," through 

the Community Development Administration (CDA), to be used for financing or 

refinancing costs of Projects defined in the Bond, funding a portion of a capital reserve 

fund and/or other reserves required by the Administration, and/or paying issuance and 

other costs related to the Bonds  

  



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 1 - 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3858 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 2019 SERIES B 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND ENTITLED 

AN ORDINANCE OF MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, A 

MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF MARYLAND (THE “ISSUER”), 

PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THREE MILLION EIGHT HUNDRED THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($3,800,000.00) OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF MAYOR AND 

CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, TO BE KNOWN AS THE 

“MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS, 

2019 SERIES B” (OR BY SUCH OTHER OR ADDITIONAL DESIGNATION OR 

DESIGNATIONS AS REQUIRED BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

ADMINISTRATION IDENTIFIED HEREIN, THE “BONDS”), TO BE ISSUED AND 

SOLD PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF SECTIONS 4-101 THROUGH 4-255 

OF THE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ARTICLE OF THE 

ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND, AS AMENDED, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

PROVIDING ALL OR A PORTION OF THE FUNDS NECESSARY FOR (I) 

FINANCING AND/OR REFINANCING COSTS OF THE PROJECTS IDENTIFIED 

HEREIN AS (A) OFFICE EQUIPMENT AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

IMPROVEMENTS, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE (INCLUDING REPLACEMENT 

OF COPIERS AND FIREWALLS AND UPGRADING A SCADA SYSTEM), (B) NEW 

AND/OR REPLACEMENT VEHICLES (INCLUDING REGULAR DUTY VEHICLES, 

HEAVY DUTY VEHICLES AND A LADDER TRUCK) AND EQUIPMENT FOR 

USE BY VARIOUS CITY DEPARTMENTS, INCLUDING THE POLICE, FIRE, 

PUBLIC WORKS, VEHICLE MAINTENANCE, STREET, PARKS & RECREATION, 

WATER DISTRIBUTION, SANITARY SEWER, AND FLOOD CONTROL 

DEPARTMENTS, (C) FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS (INCLUDING HVAC 

IMPROVEMENTS AT CITY HALL, GARAGE DOORS AT THE PUBLIC SAFETY 

BUILDING, AND GARAGE DOOR OPENERS, DOORS AND HARDWARE FOR 

THE  MUNICIPAL SERVICE CENTER), (D) STREET LIGHTING AND STREET 

IMPROVEMENTS (INCLUDING REPLACEMENT OF A TRAFFIC CABINET), 

AND/OR (E) PARKING GARAGE GATE AND PAYMENT COLLECTION SYSTEM 

IMPROVEMENTS, (II) FUNDING A PORTION OF A CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

AND/OR OTHER RESERVES, AND/OR (III) PAYING ISSUANCE AND OTHER 

COSTS RELATED TO THE BONDS; PROVIDING THAT THE BONDS SHALL BE 

ISSUED UPON THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE ISSUER; PROVIDING 

FOR THE DISBURSEMENT OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE SALE OF THE BONDS 

AND FOR THE LEVY OF ANNUAL TAXES UPON ALL ASSESSABLE PROPERTY 

WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE ISSUER FOR THE PAYMENT OF 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS AS THEY SHALL 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 2 - 
 

RESPECTIVELY COME DUE; PROVIDING FOR THE FORM, TENOR, 

DENOMINATIONS, MATURITY DATE OR DATES AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF 

THE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF THE BONDS; AND PROVIDING 

FOR RELATED PURPOSES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE 

METHOD OF FIXING THE INTEREST RATE OR RATES TO BE BORNE BY THE 

BONDS, THE APPROVAL, EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS, 

AGREEMENTS, CERTIFICATES AND INSTRUMENTS, AND THE MAKING OF 

OR PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

CONCERNING THE TAX STATUS OF INTEREST ON THE BONDS. 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (the “Issuer”) is a municipal 

corporation of the State of Maryland organized under a charter (the “Charter”) adopted in 

accordance with Article XI-E of the Constitution of Maryland and operating under the Charter 

and other applicable law; and 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 4-101 through 4-255 of the Housing and Community 

Development Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended (the “Act”), authorizes the 

Community Development Administration (the “Administration”), a governmental unit in the 

Division of Development Finance of the Department of Housing and Community Development, 

a principal department of the government of the State of Maryland, to provide financial 

assistance to political subdivisions and municipal corporations to finance, among other things, 

infrastructure projects and to establish a capital reserve fund in connection therewith; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of the Act, the Issuer has determined to issue its 

general obligation bonds in one or more series in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed 

Three Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,800,000.00) (the “Bonds”, as defined herein) 

for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing and/or 

refinancing costs of the Project (as defined herein), (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve 

fund and/or other reserves required by the Administration under the Program identified below, 

and/or (iii) paying issuance and other costs related to the Bonds; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer proposes to issue and sell the Bonds to the Administration, in 

connection with the Local Government Infrastructure Financing Program of the Administration 

(the “Program”); and  

 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Issuer by this Ordinance to provide for the issuance 

and sale of the aforementioned Bonds and to obtain a loan or loans from the Administration 

pursuant to the Program (collectively, the “Loan”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Issuer intends to authorize the execution and delivery of the Bonds and 

all other documents, agreements, certificates and other materials related to the issuance, sale and 

delivery of the Bonds and the Loan; and 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 3 - 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Administration intends to issue one or more series of its Local 

Government Infrastructure Bonds to finance the Loan and other loans to be financed pursuant to 

the Program. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND: 

 

Section 1.  Authorization, Terms, Form of Bonds. 

 

(a) Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (the “Issuer”) shall borrow upon its full 

faith and credit and shall issue and sell upon its full faith and credit an aggregate principal 

amount not to exceed Three Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,800,000.00) of its 

general obligation bonds, to be issued pursuant to the authority of Sections 4-101 through 4-255 

of the Housing and Community Development Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as 

amended (the “Act”), to be known as the “Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure 

Bonds, 2019 Series B” or by such other or additional designation or designations as required by 

the Administration (as defined herein), including, without limitation, to identify separate series 

or subseries (collectively, the “Bonds” and, individually, a “Bond”).  The proceeds from the sale 

of the Bonds shall be used for the public purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds 

necessary for (i) financing and/or refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows:  (A) 

office equipment and information technology improvements, equipment and software (including 

replacement of copiers and firewalls and upgrading a SCADA system), (B) new and/or 

replacement vehicles (including regular duty vehicles, heavy duty vehicles and a ladder truck) 

and equipment for use by various City departments, including the Police, Fire, Public Works, 

Vehicle Maintenance, Street, Parks & Recreation, Water Distribution, Sanitary Sewer, and Flood 

Control Departments, (C) facility improvements (including HVAC improvements at City Hall, 

garage doors at the Public Safety Building, and garage door openers, doors and hardware for the  

Municipal Service Center), (D) street lighting and street improvements (including replacement of 

a traffic cabinet), and/or (E) parking garage gate and payment collection system improvements, 

together with, in each such case as is applicable with respect to the project components described 

in clauses (i)(A) through (E), the acquisition or payment for, improved or unimproved land, 

necessary property rights and equipment, related site and utility improvements, related planning, 

design, architectural, engineering, bidding, permitting, acquisition, demolition, removal, 

construction, reconstruction, expansion, rehabilitation, renovation, repair, construction 

management, inspection, installation, improvement, furnishing and equipping expenses and other 

related expenses, paving, repaving, sidewalk, curb, gutter and drain work, landscaping, and 

functionally related activities necessary at the locations or facilities at or near which such 

undertakings occur, administrative, financial and legal expenses, and related or similar costs, and 

any such costs that may represent the Issuer’s share or contribution to such undertaking 

(collectively, the “Project”), (ii) funding a portion of a capital reserve fund and/or other reserves 

required by the Administration under the Program identified in subsection (b) below, and/or (iii) 

paying issuance and other costs related to the Bonds.  Notwithstanding the foregoing description 

of the Project, the Mayor of the Issuer (the “Mayor”), in consultation with the City Administrator 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 4 - 
 

of the Issuer (the “City Administrator”), any other appropriate officials of the Issuer, and the 

Community Development Administration (the “Administration”), is hereby authorized and 

empowered, on behalf of the Issuer, to determine prior to the sale of the Bonds not to apply 

Bonds proceeds to finance or refinance costs of any one or more components of the Project due 

to tax, budgetary or other considerations.   

 

(b) The Bonds shall be issued as one or more fully registered bond certificate(s) in the 

aggregate principal amount not to exceed Three Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($3,800,000.00) payable to the Administration as the registered owner thereof.  The Bonds shall 

be issued in such aggregate principal amount or such lesser aggregate principal amount as 

determined by the Mayor pursuant to subsection (g) below, which shall be equal to the aggregate 

principal amount of the loan or loans to the Issuer from the Administration (collectively, the 

“Loan”) under the Local Government Infrastructure Financing Program of the Administration 

(the “Program”). 

 

(c) The Bonds shall be dated as of the date of issue, or as of such other date as is 

specified by the Administration; shall be numbered from R-1 upward or as otherwise required by 

the Administration; shall be initially registered in the name of the Administration or its designee; 

shall bear interest from the date of issuance of the Local Government Infrastructure Bonds issued 

by the Administration (the “Administration’s Bonds”), payable semiannually on April 1 and 

October 1 or on such other days as the Administration may require in connection with the 

Program, at such annual rate or rates and be payable in annual principal installments at the 

designated office of the Administration or of the trustee for the Administration’s Bonds. 

 

(d) The Bonds shall bear interest at an aggregate rate or rates of interest for a total 

interest cost (expressed as a yield) not to exceed (1) 2.65 percent for a loan with a maturity of up 

to but not exceeding five years, (2) 2.85 percent for a loan with a maturity in excess of  five years 

but not more than ten years, (3) 3.35 percent for a loan with a maturity in excess of ten years but 

not more than fifteen years, (4) 3.55 percent for a loan with a maturity in excess of fifteen years 

but not more than twenty years, and (5) 3.75 percent for a loan with a maturity in excess of 

twenty years but not more than twenty-five years, the actual rate or rates of interest to be borne 

by the Bonds to be determined and established by the Mayor acting pursuant to Section 1(g) of 

this Ordinance. 

 

(e) The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto 

and made a part hereof, which form, together with all of the covenants and conditions therein 

contained, is hereby adopted by the Issuer as and for the form of obligation or obligations to be 

incurred by the Issuer and such covenants and conditions are hereby made binding upon the 

Issuer, including the promise to pay therein contained. 

 

(f) The Bonds are to be issued in connection with the Program in order to provide all 

or a portion of the funds needed to (i) finance and/or refinance costs of the Project, (ii) fund a 

portion of a capital reserve fund and/or other reserves required by the Administration under the 

Program, and/or (iii) pay costs of issuance and other related costs of the Bonds.  Under the 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 5 - 
 

Program, the Issuer will enter into a Repayment Agreement and a Pledge Agreement with the 

Administration (respectively, the “Repayment Agreement” and the “Pledge Agreement”).  The 

Issuer also will execute and deliver in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and the 

Program any additional documents, agreements, instruments and certificates requested by the 

Administration (which, together with the Repayment Agreement and the Pledge Agreement, are 

herein referred to as the “Program Documents”).  The Program Documents shall be in such 

forms and shall contain such terms and conditions as shall be approved by the Mayor and/or the 

City Administrator and acceptable to, and otherwise approved by, the Administration. 

 

(g) Because this Ordinance is being passed before the details have been finalized for 

the financing pursuant to which the Administration will issue the Administration’s Bonds (the 

“Administration Financing”) that will fund the Loan to the Issuer under the Program, the Mayor 

is hereby authorized to make such changes to the amount and form of the Bonds, including 

insertions therein or additions or deletions thereto, as may be necessary or appropriate to 

conform the terms of the Bonds to the terms of the financing to be provided to the Issuer under 

the Program.  Without limiting the foregoing, it is presently contemplated that the Loan will be 

in an amount not to exceed $3,800,000.00 in aggregate principal amount hereby authorized, 

subject to final approval by the Administration; accordingly, the Mayor is specifically 

authorized: (i) to make changes to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds in order to reflect 

the final aggregate principal amount of the Loan, not to exceed $3,800,000.00 as approved by the 

Administration and accepted by the Issuer, (ii) with the assistance of the City Administrator and 

the Comptroller of the Issuer (the “Comptroller”), to determine the amortization term(s) of the 

Bonds, and (iii) to authorize and approve an interest rate or rates and payment schedule(s) 

reflecting the principal and interest payments with respect to the Bonds but not to exceed the 

maximum total interest cost to be borne by the Bonds for the applicable term(s) as set forth in 

subsection (d) above. 

 

(h) This borrowing is in conformance with and does not exceed any and all applicable 

debt limitations under the Charter of the Issuer (the “Charter”). 

 

Section 2.  Execution and Completion of Documents.  The Bonds shall be executed on 

behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, and the seal of the Issuer 

shall be affixed thereto or reproduced thereon and attested by the manual signature of the City 

Clerk of the Issuer (the “City Clerk”).  The Program Documents shall be executed on behalf of 

the Issuer by the Mayor and/or the City Administrator.  In the event any official whose signature 

appears on any of the Bonds or the Program Documents shall cease to be an official prior to the 

delivery of the Bonds or the Program Documents, or, in the event any official whose signature 

appears on any of the Bonds or the Program Documents becomes an official after the date of the 

issue, the Bonds or the Program Documents shall nevertheless be valid and binding obligations 

of the Issuer in accordance with their terms.  The Mayor is hereby authorized, empowered and 

directed to complete the applicable forms of the Bonds and to make modifications, deletions, 

corrections or other changes thereto in any manner which the Mayor, in the Mayor’s discretion, 

shall deem necessary or appropriate in order to complete the issuance and sale of the Bonds, as 

will not alter the substance thereof.  The Mayor and/or the City Administrator are hereby 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 6 - 
 

authorized, empowered and directed to complete the applicable forms of the Program Documents 

and to make modifications, deletions, corrections or other changes thereto in any manner which 

such official(s), in the discretion of such official(s), shall deem necessary or appropriate in order 

to complete the execution and delivery of the Program Documents in accordance with the 

provisions of this Ordinance, as will not alter the substance thereof.  The execution and delivery 

of the Bonds by the Mayor and the execution and delivery of the Program Documents by one or 

more of the duly authorized officials provided for in this Section 2 shall be conclusive evidence 

of such official’s or officials’ approval of the forms and substance thereof.  To the extent 

appropriate, additional officials of the Issuer and counsel to the Issuer may be signatories to the 

Program Documents with respect to facts, representations, certifications, covenants and 

agreements within the scope of their respective responsibilities or authority. 

 

Section 3. Registration of Bonds.  The City Clerk shall act as registrar for the Bonds and 

shall maintain registration books for the registration and registration of transfer of the Bonds.  No 

security or bond shall be required of the City Clerk in the performance of the duties of registrar 

for the Bonds. 

 

The Issuer may deem and treat the person in whose name any Bond shall be registered 

upon the books of the Issuer as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be 

overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal of, 

premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes. 

 

Section 4.  Prepayment.  The Bonds are being issued in connection with the Program 

and will secure payment of the Administration’s Bonds, which are being issued by the 

Administration to provide funds to purchase the Bonds from the Issuer, among other purposes.  

The Repayment Agreement limits the right of the Issuer to prepay the Bonds in accordance with 

restrictions upon the right of the Administration to redeem the Administration’s Bonds.  

Accordingly, the Issuer may prepay the Bonds only in accordance with the provisions of the 

Repayment Agreement and the terms governing prepayments as set forth in the Bonds. 

 

Section 5.  Replacement of Mutilated, Lost, Stolen, or Destroyed Bonds.  In case any 

Bond shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost or stolen, the Issuer may cause to be executed 

and delivered a new Bond of like series or subseries, date and tenor and bearing the same or a 

different number, in exchange and substitution for each Bond mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen, 

upon the owner paying the reasonable expenses and charges of the Issuer in connection therewith 

and, in the case of any Bond being destroyed, lost or stolen, upon the owner filing with the Issuer 

evidence satisfactory to it that such Bond was destroyed, lost or stolen, and furnishing the Issuer 

with indemnity satisfactory to it.  Any Bond so issued in substitution for a Bond so mutilated, 

destroyed, lost or stolen: (i) may be typewritten, printed or otherwise reproduced in a manner 

acceptable to the Administration, and (ii) shall constitute an original contractual obligation on the 

part of the Issuer under this Ordinance whether or not the Bond in exchange for which said new 

Bond is issued shall at any later date be presented for payment and such payment shall be 

enforceable by anyone, and any such new Bond shall be equally and proportionately entitled to 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 7 - 
 

the benefits of this Ordinance with all other like Bonds, in the manner and to the extent provided 

herein. 

 

Section 6.  Use of Proceeds.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be held and invested by 

the Administration in its sole discretion and shall be: 

 

(a) Administered and disbursed by the Administration pursuant to the Repayment 

Agreement.  The proceeds of the Bonds shall be used, when and as required, to pay Development 

Costs (as defined in the Repayment Agreement). 

 

(b) After the Project has been completed and all Development Costs in connection 

therewith have been paid, any balance of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds held by the 

Administration under the Repayment Agreement may be applied to the next maturing principal 

installment or installments, payment of interest on the Bonds or prepayment of the Bonds, as 

permitted by the Administration. 

 

Section 7. Covenants. The Issuer covenants with the Administration and for the benefit 

of the Administration and the owners from time to time of the Bonds that so long as the Bonds or 

installments of principal thereunder shall remain outstanding and unpaid: 

 

(a) The Issuer will duly and punctually pay, or cause to be paid, to the Administration 

the principal of the Bonds, premium (if any) and interest accruing thereon, at the dates and places 

and in the manner mentioned in the Bonds from unlimited ad valorem taxes in the event that 

available funds are inadequate to make such payment. 

 

(b) The Issuer covenants that so long as any of the Bonds are outstanding and not 

paid, unless other funds are available for payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest 

on the Bonds, it shall levy annually, in the manner prescribed by law, ad valorem taxes on all 

real and tangible personal property within its corporate limits subject to assessment for unlimited 

taxation in rate and amount sufficient to provide for the payment of the principal of and interest 

on the Bonds as the same become due and payable; and in the event that the revenues available 

from the taxes so levied in any fiscal year shall prove inadequate for the above purposes, the 

Issuer shall levy additional taxes in the succeeding fiscal year to make up such deficiency; and 

the full faith and credit and the unlimited taxing power of the Issuer are hereby irrevocably 

pledged to the punctual payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same 

become due. 

 

(c) The Issuer will promptly provide to the Administration (or to any person 

designated by the Administration) all financial information and operating data concerning the 

Issuer as may be required by the Administration in its discretion in order for the Administration 

to comply with the requirements of Rule 15c2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange 

Commission, as in effect from time to time, applicable to the Administration’s Bonds. 

 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 8 - 
 

Section 8.  Ordinance a Contract.  The provisions of this Ordinance shall constitute a 

contract with the purchasers and owners from time to time of the Bonds, and this Ordinance shall 

not be repealed, modified or altered in any manner materially adverse to the Administration 

and/or the interests of such purchasers or owners while the Bonds or any portion thereof remain 

outstanding and unpaid without the consent of the owners of the Bonds and the Administration. 

 

Section 9.  Pledge of Local Government Payments.  As contemplated and authorized 

by Section 4-229(b) of the Act, the Issuer hereby pledges, assigns and grants a lien and a security 

interest to the Administration, its successors in trust and assigns, in all right, title and interest of 

the Issuer in and to the Local Government Payments (as defined in the Pledge Agreement), now 

or hereafter acquired, (i) to secure payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 

the Bonds and any other Local Obligations (as defined in the Pledge Agreement) issued and to be 

issued from time to time by the Issuer under the Program and (ii) to provide for deposits to the 

capital reserve fund securing the Bonds and/or other reserves required under the Program the 

amount of the Issuer’s portion of any deficiency in such capital reserve fund or such other 

reserves as the Administration shall require, all as more fully set forth and provided in the Pledge 

Agreement. 

 

Section 10.  Purchase Price of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be sold for cash in accordance 

with the terms and provisions of this Ordinance at par, or if premium or discount is permitted by 

law, at such premium or discount as is agreed to with the Administration in accordance with the 

terms and provisions of this Ordinance, and as authorized by Section 4-229(a) of the Act. 

 

Section 11.  Sale of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be sold to the Administration under the 

Program at private sale, as authorized by Section 4-229(a) of the Act. 

 

Section 12.  Authority to Take Action; Publication and Public Hearing. 

 

(a) The appropriate officials and employees of the Issuer are hereby authorized and 

directed to do all acts and things required of them by the provisions of this Ordinance, for the 

full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and provisions of the Bonds, 

the Program Documents and this Ordinance and to do and perform all acts and to execute, seal 

and deliver all documents or instruments of writing which may be necessary or desirable to carry 

out the full intent and purpose of this Ordinance and the Program Documents. 

 

(b) As required by the Act, prior to the issuance of the Bonds, the Issuer shall publish 

in a newspaper of general circulation in the jurisdiction of the Issuer a notice of the proposed 

issuance of the Bonds, which notice shall include the proposed amount of the issue, the nature of 

the projects to be financed or refinanced, the time and place of the public hearing, the name of 

the person(s) and address of the place where written comments may be sent, and the Issuer shall 

hold a public hearing on the proposed issuance of the Bonds.  Such actions may be (or have 

been) taken prior to or simultaneously with the passage of this Ordinance. 
 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 9 - 
 

(c) The Issuer shall comply with any publication and/or posting requirements set forth 

in its Charter that are determined to be applicable to this Ordinance. 

  



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 10 - 
 

 Section 13.  Tax Matters 

 

(a) Any one or more of the Mayor, the City Administrator, the Treasurer of the Issuer 

(the “Treasurer”) and/or the Comptroller shall be the officers of the Issuer responsible for the 

issuance of the Bonds within the meaning of the Arbitrage Regulations (defined herein).  Any 

one or more of the Mayor, the City Administrator, the Treasurer and/or the Comptroller shall 

also be the officers of the Issuer responsible for the execution and delivery (on the date of 

issuance of the Bonds) of a certificate of the Issuer (the “Section 148 Certificate”) which 

complies with the requirements of Section 148 (“Section 148”) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the applicable regulations thereunder (the “Arbitrage 

Regulations”), and such official or officials are hereby directed to execute the Section 148 

Certificate and to deliver the same to the Administration on the date of the issuance of the Bonds.  

The Section 148 Certificate may be contained within any of the Program Documents at the 

discretion of the Administration. 

 

(b) The Issuer shall set forth in the Section 148 Certificate its reasonable expectations 

as to relevant facts, estimates and circumstances relating to the use of the proceeds of the Bonds, 

or of any monies, securities or other obligations to the credit of any account of the Issuer which 

may be deemed to be proceeds of the Bonds pursuant to Section 148 or the Arbitrage 

Regulations (collectively, “Bond Proceeds”).  The Issuer covenants that the facts, estimates and 

circumstances set forth in the Section 148 Certificate will be based on the Issuer’s reasonable 

expectations on the date of issuance of the Bonds and will be, to the best of the certifying 

official’s or officials’ knowledge, true and correct as of that date. 

 

(c) The Issuer covenants and agrees with each of the holders of any of the Bonds that 

it will not make, or (to the extent that it exercises control or direction) permit to be made, any use 

of the Bond Proceeds which would cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning 

of Section 148 and the regulations thereunder that are applicable to the Bonds on the date of 

issuance of the Bonds and that may subsequently lawfully be made applicable to the Bonds. 

 

(d) The Issuer further covenants that it shall make such use of the proceeds of the 

Bonds, regulate the investment of the proceeds thereof, and take such other and further actions as 

may be required to maintain the excludability from gross income for federal income tax purposes 

of interest on the Bonds.  All officials, officers, employees and agents of the Issuer are hereby 

authorized and directed to take such actions, and to provide such certifications of facts and 

estimates regarding the amount and use of the proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary or 

appropriate from time to time to comply with, or to evidence the Issuer’s compliance with, the 

covenants set forth in this Section. 

 

(e) Any one or more of the Mayor, the City Administrator, the Treasurer and/or the 

Comptroller, on behalf of the Issuer, may make such covenants or agreements in connection with 

the issuance of Bonds issued hereunder as such official(s) shall deem advisable in order to assure 

the registered owners of such Bonds that interest thereon shall be and remain excludable from 

gross income for federal income tax purposes, and such covenants or agreements shall be 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 11 - 
 

binding on the Issuer so long as the observance by the Issuer of any such covenants or 

agreements is necessary in connection with the maintenance of the exclusion of the interest on 

such Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The foregoing covenants and 

agreements may include such covenants or agreements on behalf of the Issuer regarding 

compliance with the provisions of the Code as such identified official(s) shall deem advisable in 

order to assure the registered owners of such Bonds that the interest thereon shall be and remain 

excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes, including, without limitation, 

covenants or agreements relating to the investment of the proceeds of such Bonds, the payment 

of rebate (or payments in lieu of rebate) to the United States, limitations on the times within 

which, and the purpose for which, such proceeds may be expended, or the use of specified 

procedures for accounting for and segregating such proceeds.  Such official(s) may also make on 

behalf of the Issuer any elections, designations or determinations authorized or permitted by the 

Code or the Arbitrage Regulations. 

 

Section 14.  Effective Date; Miscellaneous.  (a) Notwithstanding the provisions of 

Section 82A(b)(3) of the Charter, pursuant to Section 4-232(c) of the Act, this Ordinance shall 

take effect from the date of its passage by the Mayor and City Council of the Issuer (the “Mayor 

and City Council”), and it is the intent hereof that the laws of the State of Maryland shall govern 

its construction and the construction of the Bonds.  Any copy of this Ordinance duly certified by 

the City Clerk or the City Clerk’s successor in office shall constitute evidence of the contents and 

provisions hereof. 

 

(b) Any reference to an official of the Issuer in this Ordinance shall be deemed to 

include any such official serving in an “acting” or “interim” capacity (e.g., the Acting City 

Administrator of the Issuer or the Interim City Clerk of the Issuer).  Any reference to an official 

of the Issuer in this Ordinance shall be deemed to include references to such official if generally 

known by another title; titles of officials as used in this Ordinance correspond generally to the 

titles used in the Charter or the City Code of the Issuer (the “City Code”). 

  

(c) In the event the position of any official who is referred to by title in this 

Ordinance is vacant at the time any action authorized to be taken by such official in accordance 

with the provisions of this Ordinance shall occur, and no person has been appointed to such 

position (including in an “acting” or “interim” capacity) and is incumbent in such position, 

references in this Ordinance to such official shall be deemed to refer to any other appropriate 

official of the Issuer charged with such responsibilities under the Charter or the City Code or, to 

the extent not so provided for in the Charter or the City Code, as designated by the Mayor and 

City Council by motion or other appropriate action.  Written evidence of any such designation 

shall be provided to the Administration.  Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, in the event 

two or more officials are charged with responsibility for taking any actions in accordance with 

the provisions of this Ordinance and only one such position is filled at the applicable time, any 

such action may be taken solely by the remaining official. 

  

(d) References in this Ordinance to the phrases “to finance”, “to pay” or “to fund” or 

similar phrases shall be deemed to refer to and include “to reimburse” or similar phrases. 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 12 - 
 

 

(e) References in this Ordinance to the phrase “including” and similar phrases shall 

be deemed to refer to and include “including, but not limited to”, “including, without limitation,” 

or similar phrases. 

 

(f) The title of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be, and is, a fair summary of this 

Ordinance for all purposes. 

 

(g) Pursuant to Section 4-232(b) of the Act, this Ordinance shall be subject to petition 

to referendum by the qualified voters of the Issuer in accordance with Section 82A(c) of the 

Charter provided that the petition is filed not later than 20 days after this Ordinance is passed by 

the Mayor and City Council.  The provisions of Section 82A(c) of the Charter allowing for a 

referendum petition to be filed within 30 days following passage of a bond ordinance shall be 

disregarded and the provisions of Section 4-232(b) of the Act shall control the period in which 

any referendum petition must be filed. 

 

(h) To the extent not paid from proceeds of the Bonds, the Issuer shall pay costs of 

issuance relating to the Bonds from other available sources. 

 

(i) The Mayor’s signature on this Ordinance constitutes and signifies his approval of 

this Ordinance as required by Section 4-232(a)(1)(ii) of the Act.  

 

 

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- 13 - 
 

(j) The provisions of this Ordinance shall be liberally construed in order to effectuate 

the transactions contemplated hereby. 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF    

         CUMBERLAND 

 

 

(SEAL)     __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss 

      Mayor  

 

ATTEST:       

 

 

______________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk 

 

 

Introduced: ______________________, 2019 

 

Passed:  ______________________, 2019 

 

Effective: ______________________, 2019 

 

 

 Exhibit A. – Form of Bond        

 

 

 

 

 
#212960;10002.071



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-1 - 
 

[FORM OF BOND] 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

United States of America 

State of Maryland 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

Infrastructure Bond, 2019 Series B 

 

 

No. R-1          $__________ 

 

 Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, a municipal corporation duly organized and 

existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Maryland (the “Issuer”), hereby promises 

to pay to the  

 

Maryland Community Development Administration 

 

or its registered assigns, the principal amount of _______________ Dollars ($__________), plus 

interest on each unpaid principal installment at rates per annum resulting in the total interest cost 

(“TIC”) (expressed as a yield) set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, in lawful money of the 

United States of America, as follows: (a) interest on the outstanding and unpaid principal of this 

bond shall be due and payable in semiannual payments commencing on __________, 20__, and 

continuing on the first day of [October] and [April] in each year thereafter until final maturity; 

(b) principal of this bond shall be paid commencing on _________ and on [April 1] in each year 

thereafter until final maturity in the aggregate amount of principal installments as set forth on 

Exhibit A.  Payment of the principal hereof and the interest due hereon shall be made by check 

mailed to the address of the registered owner of this bond as shown on the registration books 

maintained by the Issuer, or in such other manner and to such other address as the registered 

owner of this bond may designate.  If any payment of the principal of or interest on this bond 

shall be due on a day other than a Business Day (defined herein), such payment shall be made on 

the next Business Day with like effect as if made on the originally scheduled date.  A “Business 

Day” is any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the State of Maryland 

observed as such by the Issuer. 

 

 In the event any payment hereon (whether principal, interest or both) is not paid when 

due and payable, such payment shall continue as an obligation of the Issuer and shall bear 

interest until paid at the rate or rates of interest borne by this bond. 

 

 This bond, designated as “Mayor and City Council of Cumberland Infrastructure Bond, 

2019 Series [B]” (this “Bond”), is a general obligation of the Issuer, and has been duly issued by 

the Issuer for the purpose of providing all or a portion of the funds necessary for (i) financing 

and/or refinancing costs of certain projects identified as follows:  (A) office equipment and 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-2 - 
 

information technology improvements, equipment and software (including replacement of 

copiers and firewalls and upgrading a SCADA system), (B) new and/or replacement vehicles 

(including regular duty vehicles, heavy duty vehicles and a ladder truck) and equipment for use 

by various City departments, including the Police, Fire, Public Works, Vehicle Maintenance, 

Street, Parks & Recreation, Water Distribution, Sanitary Sewer, and Flood Control Departments, 

(C) facility improvements (including HVAC improvements at City Hall, garage doors at the 

Public Safety Building, and garage door openers, doors and hardware for the  Municipal Service 

Center), (D) street lighting and street improvements (including replacement of a traffic cabinet), 

and/or (E) parking garage gate and payment collection system improvements, (ii) funding a 

portion of a capital reserve fund and/or other reserves required by the Administration, and/or (iii) 

paying issuance and other costs related to this Bond.  Unless paid from other sources, the Issuer 

covenants that so long as any portion of this Bond is outstanding and not paid, it shall levy 

annually, in the manner prescribed by law, ad valorem taxes on all real and tangible personal 

property within its corporate limits subject to assessment for unlimited taxation in rate and 

amount sufficient to provide for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond as the 

same become due and payable. 

 

 This Bond is issued pursuant to the authority of Sections 4-101 through 4-255 of the 

Housing and Community Development Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended, 

Sections 81 and 82A of the Charter of the Issuer, and Ordinance No. __________ of the Issuer 

passed by the Mayor and City Council of the Issuer on ______________, 2019 and effective on 

_________________, 2019 (the “Ordinance”).  The full faith and credit of the Issuer are hereby 

irrevocably pledged to the payment of the principal of this Bond and the interest to accrue 

hereon. 

 

 This Bond is issued in connection with the Local Government Infrastructure Financing 

Program of the Community Development Administration, a governmental unit in the Division of 

Development Finance of the Department of Housing and Community Development, a principal 

department of the government of the State of Maryland (the “Administration”).  This Bond is 

subject to the terms and conditions of the Repayment Agreement dated as of __________, 2019, 

between the Issuer and the Administration (the “Repayment Agreement”). 

 

 This Bond is not subject to prepayment by the Issuer prior to [April] 1, 20____.  On or 

after _____________, this Bond is subject to prepayment by the Issuer at the prepayment prices, 

expressed as a percentage of the principal amount to be prepaid, plus accrued interest, if any, to 

the prepayment date, on the principal amount thereof, and during the periods (both dates 

inclusive) listed below: 
 

Period        Price 
 

_________ through ___________   % 

_________ through ___________    

_________ through thereafter     

 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-3 - 
 

 Notice of prepayment shall be given, the date of prepayment determined, and all 

prepayments of this Bond shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of the Repayment 

Agreement. 

 

 The Issuer may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute 

owner hereof, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, for the purpose of receiving payment 

thereof and for all other purposes whatsoever, and shall not be affected by any notice to the 

contrary, except as provided below. 

 

 This Bond is assignable and upon such assignment the assignor shall promptly notify the 

Issuer by certified mail, and the assignee shall surrender this Bond to the Issuer for transfer on 

the registration records and verification of the portion of the principal amount hereof and interest 

hereon paid or unpaid, and every such assignee shall take this Bond subject to such condition.  In 

connection with any transfer of this Bond, the Issuer may make a charge sufficient to reimburse 

it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer 

and any reasonable fees or expenses of the Issuer incurred in connection with such transfer. 

 

 Principal of this Bond is paid in annual installments and this Bond is subject to partial 

redemption without any notation of such payment being made on this Bond or the surrender of 

this Bond for cancellation and the issuance of a new Bond or Bonds in the amount of the unpaid 

principal hereof.  Accordingly, the outstanding principal of this Bond may be less than the stated 

face amount hereof and any purchaser or transferee of this Bond should contact the Issuer and 

the prior owner of this Bond to ascertain the outstanding face amount hereof. 

 

 As declared by Section 4-231(c) of the Housing and Community Development Article of 

the Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended, this Bond shall have and possess all the attributes 

of negotiable instruments as provided in Section 19-224 of the Local Government Article of the 

Annotated Code of Maryland, as amended.  This Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of 

the State of Maryland shall govern its construction. 

 

 No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of, the interest on, or for any 

claim based hereon or on the Ordinance against any elected or appointed official or employee, 

past, present or future of the Issuer or any agency thereof; and any such recourse, claim or 

liability is expressly waived by acceptance by the owner of the delivery of this Bond. 

 

 It is hereby certified and recited that each and every act, condition and thing required to 

exist, to be done, to have happened and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this 

Bond does exist, has been done, has happened and has been performed in full and strict 

compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Maryland, the Charter of the Issuer and 

the proceedings of the Issuer. 

 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-4 - 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Mayor and City Council of Cumberland has caused this Bond 

to be signed in its name by the manual or facsimile signature of its Mayor and its corporate seal 

to be affixed hereto and attested by the manual signature of the City Clerk, as of ____________, 

2019. 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

       CUMBERLAND 

 

 

 

 

______________________________  By: __________________________ 

City Clerk            Mayor 

 

 



__________ 

Underlining = Indicates material added by amendment after introduction 

Strike-through = Indicates material deleted by amendment after introduction 
 

- A-5 - 
 

BOND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 

 

[Use the following paragraph (with necessary modifications) to clarify the amount to be paid 

under the schedule prepared by the Financial Advisor.] 

 

 

 

[Repayment Schedule to be Inserted.] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Each installment of Principal and Interest or Interest alone shall be the aggregate of amounts set forth in this Exhibit 

A for the date of such payment as shown under the heading designated “Total.” 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,488 - authorizing a Special Taxing District tax exemption for 15 South Liberty 

Street in the amount of $520.30 for the 2018-2019 tax years. 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,488                    DATE:     August 13, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following Residential Exemption from the Special Taxing District 

Levy for the 2018-2019 tax years be and is hereby granted: 

 

Property  / Owner Tax Year / Account No. Exemption 

Amt. 

15  S. Liberty St. – Nancy Lepley 2018-2019    Tax No. 04-049381-4P $520.30 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this exemption is hereby granted pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 235 of the City Charter. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,489 - adopting a revised Employee Handbook for Full-Time Non-Union 

Employees 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,489                   DATE:      _ ___August 13, 2019____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, Order No. 26,107, dated March 21, 2017, adopting a revised “Handbook 

for Full-Time Non-Union Employees” be and is hereby rescinded; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the attached “Handbook for Full-Time Non-

Union Employees” be and is hereby adopted. 

  

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,489                   DATE:      _ ___August 6, 2019____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, Order No. 26,107, dated March 21, 2017, adopting a revised “Handbook 

for Full-Time Non-Union Employees” be and is hereby rescinded; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the attached “Handbook for Full-Time Non-

Union Employees” be and is hereby adopted. 

  

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,490 - appointing Robert Godfrey to the Board of Commissioners for the 

Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland for a five year term, effective November 

1, 2019 through October 31, 2024 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,490                   DATE:      _ ___August 13, 2019____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, Robert Godfrey be and is hereby appointed to the Board of the Housing 

Authority of the City of Cumberland for a five (5) year term to be effective November 1, 

2019 through October 31, 2024. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,491 - authorizing the abatement of taxes and utilities owed on City-owned 

property at 607 Maryland Ave. 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,491                     DATE:    ___ August 13, 2019___  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the taxes and utilities for City-owned property at 607 Maryland Avenue be 

and are hereby abated.  

 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,492 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Robert L. and Shiela S. Metz, 

pertaining to 13 Pennsylvania Avenue has been fully paid and satisfied 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,492                     DATE:      August 13, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Certificate of 

Satisfaction acknowledging that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by 

Robert L and Shiela S. Metz, pertaining to 13 Pennsylvania Avenue and dated April 14, 

2009 (Allegany County Land Records Book 1577, Page 446), has been fully paid and 

satisfied and the lien of the Deed of Trust is hereby released. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
6,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
7,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
8,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
9,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

45
0,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

45
1,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

45
2,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

45
3,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

45
4,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

45
5,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



 

Certificate of Satisfaction 

 
Know All Men By These Presents: 

 

 That the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland does hereby acknowledge that 

the indebtedness secured by a certain Deed of Trust made by Robert L. Metz and Shiela 

S. Metz unto Michael Scott Cohen, trustee for the benefit of the Mayor and City Council 

of Cumberland, dated April 14, 2009 and recorded among the Land Records of Allegany 

County, Maryland in Book 1577, Page 446 has been fully paid and satisfied, that the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland was at the time of satisfaction the holder of the 

Deed of Trust Note, and that the lien of the Deed of Trust is hereby released. 

 

 WITNESS the hand and seal of the holder of the Deed of Trust Note this ____ 

day of July, 2019. 

 

WITNESS/ATTEST: 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

      CUMBERLAND 

 

 

___________________________  By:_______________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk       Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

STATE OF MARYLAND,  

ALLEGANY COUNTY, TO WIT: 

 

 I HEARBY CERTIFY, that on this _____ day of July, 2019, before me, the 

subscriber, a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared 

Raymond M. Morriss, who acknowledged himself to be the Mayor of the Mayor and City 

Council of Cumberland, a Maryland municipal corporation, the holder of the instrument 

referred to above, and that he, as such Mayor, being duly authorized to do so, executed 

the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained and he acknowledged that the 

facts set forth in said instrument are true. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal the day and year first above written. 

 

 

       _________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

My Commission Expires:____________________ 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,493- authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Dollie Catherine Derlan, 

pertaining to 304 Virginia Avenue has been fully paid and satisfied 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,493                     DATE:      August 13, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Certificate of 

Satisfaction acknowledging that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by 

Dollie Catherine Derlan, pertaining to 304 Virginia Avenue and dated April 14, 2009 

(Allegany County Land Records Book 1577, Page 427), has been fully paid and satisfied 

and the lien of the Deed of Trust is hereby released. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

42
7,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

42
8,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

42
9,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
0,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
1,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
2,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
3,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
4,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
5,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



 

Certificate of Satisfaction 

 
Know All Men By These Presents: 

 

 That the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland does hereby acknowledge that 

the indebtedness secured by a certain Deed of Trust made by Dollie Catherine Derlan 

unto Michael Scott Cohen, trustee for the benefit of the Mayor and City Council of 

Cumberland, dated April 14, 2009 and recorded among the Land Records of Allegany 

County, Maryland in Book 1577, Page 427 has been fully paid and satisfied, that the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland was at the time of satisfaction the holder of the 

Deed of Trust Note, and that the lien of the Deed of Trust is hereby released. 

 

 WITNESS the hand and seal of the holder of the Deed of Trust Note this ____ 

day of July, 2019. 

 

WITNESS/ATTEST: 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

      CUMBERLAND 

 

 

___________________________  By:_______________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk       Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

STATE OF MARYLAND,  

ALLEGANY COUNTY, TO WIT: 

 

 I HEARBY CERTIFY, that on this _____ day of July, 2019, before me, the 

subscriber, a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared 

Raymond M. Morriss, who acknowledged himself to be the Mayor of the Mayor and City 

Council of Cumberland, a Maryland municipal corporation, the holder of the instrument 

referred to above, and that he, as such Mayor, being duly authorized to do so, executed 

the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained and he acknowledged that the 

facts set forth in said instrument are true. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal the day and year first above written. 

 

 

       _________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

My Commission Expires:____________________ 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,494 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Gregory and Shawnee L. 

McElfish pertaining to 114-116 Oak Street has been fully paid and satisfied 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,494                     DATE:      August 13, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Certificate of 

Satisfaction acknowledging that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by 

Gregory and Shawnee L. McElfish, pertaining to 114-116 Oak Street and dated April 14, 

2009 (Allegany County Land Records Book 1577, Page 436), has been fully paid and 

satisfied and the lien of the Deed of Trust is hereby released. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
6,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
7,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
8,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

43
9,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
0,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
1,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
2,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
3,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
4,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



A
LL

E
G

A
N

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

IR
C

U
IT

 C
O

U
R

T
 (

La
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

) 
D

D
L 

15
77

, p
. 0

44
5,

 M
S

A
_C

E
78

_1
21

8.
 D

at
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
04

/2
2/

20
09

. P
rin

te
d 

06
/1

9/
20

19
.



 

Certificate of Satisfaction 

 
Know All Men By These Presents: 

 

 That the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland does hereby acknowledge that 

the indebtedness secured by a certain Deed of Trust made by Gregory McElfish and 

Shawnee L. McElfish unto Michael Scott Cohen, trustee for the benefit of the Mayor and 

City Council of Cumberland, dated April 14, 2009 and recorded among the Land Records 

of Allegany County, Maryland in Book 1577, Page 436 has been fully paid and satisfied, 

that the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland was at the time of satisfaction the holder 

of the Deed of Trust Note, and that the lien of the Deed of Trust is hereby released. 

 

 WITNESS the hand and seal of the holder of the Deed of Trust Note this ____ 

day of July, 2019. 

 

WITNESS/ATTEST: 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

      CUMBERLAND 

 

 

___________________________  By:_______________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk       Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

STATE OF MARYLAND,  

ALLEGANY COUNTY, TO WIT: 

 

 I HEARBY CERTIFY, that on this _____ day of July, 2019, before me, the 

subscriber, a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared 

Raymond M. Morriss, who acknowledged himself to be the Mayor of the Mayor and City 

Council of Cumberland, a Maryland municipal corporation, the holder of the instrument 

referred to above, and that he, as such Mayor, being duly authorized to do so, executed 

the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained and he acknowledged that the 

facts set forth in said instrument are true. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal the day and year first above written. 

 

 

       _________________________ 

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

 

My Commission Expires:____________________ 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,495 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Shirley L. McDonald 

pertaining to 128 Springdale Street has been fully paid and satisfied 

  



























Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,496 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging 

that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Larry and Samantha Moon 

pertaining to 208-210 Virginia Avenue has been fully paid and satisfied 

  

























Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,497 - authorizing a Special Taxing District exemption of $832.50 for 27 N. 

Centre Street for the 2019/2020 Tax year 

  





- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,488                    DATE:     August 13, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following Residential Exemption from the Special Taxing District 

Levy for the 2019-2020 tax years be and is hereby granted: 

 

Property  / Owner Tax Year / Account No. Exemption 

Amt. 

27 N. Centre St. – Sandra Saville 2018-2019    Tax No. 14-0026184P $832.50 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this exemption is hereby granted pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 235 of the City Charter. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,498 - authorizing the abatement of 2019/2020 taxes for City-owned properties at 

Bishop Walsh Rd., Eleanor Terr., and Seneca Ave (cell tower properties) 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,498                     DATE:    August 13, 2019 ___ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Comptroller be and is hereby authorized to abate 2019-2020 taxes for 

the following City-owned properties: 

 

Tax Year 2019-2020 Acct No. 06-050301 Bishop Walsh Road $9,254.73 

Tax Year 2019-2020 Acct No. 06-035019 Eleanor Terrace $1,170.75 

Tax Year 2019-2020 Acct No. 06-011853 Eleanor Terrace $1,749.58 

Tax Year 2019-2020 Acct No. 06-046908 Seneca Avenue $1,854.13 

  

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Cellular tower locations) 











Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,499 - authorizing the abatement of taxes for the 2019 tax year for various City-

owned properties 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,499                    DATE:    August 13, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the taxes for the 2019 and prior year taxes on the following properties be 

and are hereby abated: 

 

Property             Tax Account No. 

119 Pennsylvania Ave. 04-026438 

424 Goethe St.   23-013037 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 







Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,500 - authorizing the sole source purchase of two (2) Reciprocating Skimmer 

Systems for the Water Filtration Plant, in the amount of $41,233.00, from Xylem Water 

Solutions USA, Inc. 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,500                     DATE:    August 13, 2019  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the sole source proposal from Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc., 227 S. 

Division Street, Zelienople, PA, 16063 to provide two (2) Reciprocating Skimmer 

Systems for the Water Filtration Plant’s Dissolve Air Flotation System for the total price 

of Forty-one Thousand, Two Hundred and Thirty-three Dollars and No Cents 

($41,233.00) be and is hereby accepted. 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

Funding:  299C 630 





















7t29t2019 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Fwd: Sole Source Approval

/

CM,#*Itr
tr;i^ ,t:r.:;1['

Cind i Mertens <cindi. mertens@cumberlandmd.gov>

Fwd: Sole Source Approval
1 message

Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> Fri, Jul 26,2019 at2:24PM
To: Cindi Mertens <cindi.mertens@cumberlandmd.gov>, Zach Sloane <zach.sloane@cumberlandmd.gov>

Cindt,

Let meknow if you need onything odditionol so this can be added to M&CC agenda. I will sign tha proposol and send

back to Xylem Woter Solutions after wehave M&CC opprovol.

Thanks,

Rodney C. Maruin
Public Works Utilities Manager
City of Cumberland
301-759-6641

Forwarded message
From : Jeff Rh odes <jeff. rhodes@cu m berla nd md. gov>
Date: Fri, Jul26, 2019 at 1:43 PM
Subject: Re: Sole Source Approval
To : Rodney Marvi n <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov>
Cc: Ken Tressler <ken.tressler@cumberlandmd.gov>

Approved

Jeffrey D. Rhodes
City Administrator
City of Cumberland, Maryland
301-759-6424

On Thu, Jul 25, 2019 at 6:24 PM Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:
I I thought my email was missing something and l'm sure Wayne can sweet talk his way through most anything.

Sole Source is necessary because Xylem Water Solutions is the manufacturer and only supplier of this equipment.

Sent from my iPhone

On Jul 25, 2019, at 4:01 PM, Jeff Rhodes <jeff.rhodes@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:

Rodney,

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=f3d50a3ca5gv;s\il=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3,Al 640146366185700425&simpl=msg-f%3,Al 6401463661 ... 112



7129t2019

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/O?ik=f3d50a3ca5gu;gw=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1640146366185700425&simpl=msg-f%3416401463661 ... 212

City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Fwd: Sole Source Approval

I need some sort of reasoning for the sole source....unless Steener is Coming to sweet talk me ?

Jeff

Jeffrey D. Rhodes
City Administrator
City of Cumberland, Maryland
301-759-6424

On Thu, Ju\25,2019 at 3:07 PM Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:
leff,

f om reguesting Sole Source opprovol to Xylem Water Solutions "Leopold" in the omount of
$41,233 to provide and instoll fwo (2) reciprocoting skimmer sysfems for the WFP Dissolve Air
Flotation System. This project listed in our Capitol fmprovemant Plon for Fy 20 with funds being
provided in project code 299C 630

Note! On pageS of 9 in the ottochment, Poyment terms ore listed.

If opproved, Cindiwould odd this to M&CC ogendo for their opprovol.

Thonks,

Rodney C. Maruin
Public Works Utilities Manager
City of Cumberland
301-759-5641

119011 Leopold DAF Equipment rev00 7-24-19 (3) Priced Proposal.docx
501 K



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,501 - authorizing the sole source purchase of nine (9) Peristaltic Chemical 

Metering Pumps for the Water Filtration Plant in the total amount of $29,545.00, from 

the T.E. Byerly Company, Inc. 

  



/

T. E" BYERLY COMPANY INC.
P.O. BOX 247

BROOKEVILLE, MD 20833
PH: 410-565-2637
FAX: 410-555-2638

July 23, 2019

Zach Sloane
City of Cumberland
1072 Lake Gordon Rd
Bedford, PA 15522

Subject: Blue White pumps

Quote# TEB6979BW
Dear Zach,

Per your recent request for Blue White Pumps for the below applications, we recornmend:

Hydroflurosilic acid: average flow: 40 GpD

Two - Blue White Modet M-324{NGG rated for 16.5 GpH @ 110 pSI. pump is powered by
brushless DC motor and has Hasteltoy c-276 sensor for leak detection. pump is housed in Nema
4X aluminum enclosure. Controls include 4-20 mA input, 1-250V/6A relay and 3- 115V 14
contact closures that are assignable { i.e. remote start/stop, run indication, etc. } pump
constructed with Norprene peristaltic tube with end connections, clear acrylic head cover and
thermoplastic roller and stainless steel roller bearing, Quick disconnect tube fittings for above
puhp, 3/8" x 1/4" tubing, p/N esv, pump comes with one spare tube. power req-uired is
72a/7/6o. Tube failure detection, 5 year warranty, NFs 61 certified.

Price... $ 4,253.00 each

Zinc Orthophosate: average flow G0 GpD

Two - Blue White Model M-324engg rated for 16.5 GpH @ 110 pSI same as above

Price..,$ 4,253.00 each

Potassium Permanganate: average flow120 GpD

Two - Blue White Model M-324-eNKL rated for 31.7 GpH @ 30 pSI same as above

Price...$ 4,235.00 each

E-Ma il : tomtebco@verizon. net
Cell: 410-952-2654



/

T. E. BYERLY COMPANY INC.

P"O. BOX 247
BROOKEVILLE, MD 20833

PH: 410-565-2637 E-Mail: tomtebco@verizon.net
FAX : 410-665-2638 Celt: 410-952-2664

-ii... - €rc - Blue White Model A1N3OV-7T chemical metering pump rated for g5.1 GpD @ S0 pSI,
manual or automatic control, 4-20 mA input controlwith touch pad control and LED display

Price...$ 1,101.00 each

Cationic Polymer
One - Blue White ModelAlN3OV-1TP chemicalmetering pump rated for 24 GpD @ 65 psl,
manualor automatic control, 4-20 mA input controlwith touch pad control and LED display

Price...$ 1,214.00 each

Spare tubes
Two - P/N A3-QNGG-T tube for hydrofluorsilic acid
Price...$ 60.00 each

Two - P/N A3-QNGG-T tube for zinc ofthophosphate
Price....$ 60.00 each

Two - P/N A3-QNKL-T tube for potassium permanganate
Price...$ 60.OO each

,3t- *rvo Spare roller for M224-QNGG, P/N A2 SNGG-R
Price...$ 21 1 .00 each

Prices quoted are fob factory, no taxes included, terms net 30 days. delivery is 2 weeks after
receipt of order,
In the event subject proposal results in an order, please address same to pyrz Water, pO Box
107, Harleysville, PA 19438.

Sincerely,
Thomas Byerly

T.E.Byerly Co. Inc



Chemical Quantity M2 M3 4100 Subtotal

KMNO4

ZnPO4

Fluoride

Caustic

c581

Other:
Replacement Set of Roller for M2 - $500
Tubes - S 500

4253

4253

4253

2

2

2

Z

1

8s06

8s06

8s06

2202
t274

1101

1214

Total

2t1
It00

Total 29545

trr'



7t31t2019 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Fwd: Sole Source Approval

I

t

CM,#il
b,;{ ,rrti,ilt'

Cind i Mertens <cind i.mertens@cu m berlandmd. gov>

Fwd: Sole Source Approval
'l message

Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlarldmd.gov> Wed, Jul 31,2019 at 10:15 AM
To:Zach Sloane <zach.sloane@cumbedandmd.gov>, Cindi Merlens <cindi.mertens@cumberlandmd.gov>

Rodney C. Maruin
Public Work Utilities Manager
City of Cumberland
301-759-6641

Foruuarded message
From : Jeff Rhodes <jeff . rhod es@cu m be rland md. gov>
Date:Wed, Jul 3'1, 2019 at 10:03 AM
Subject: Re: Sole Source Approval
To: Rodney Marvin < rodney, marvin@cu m berla nd md. gov>

Cc: Ken Tressler <ken,tressler@cumberlanCmd.gov>

On Wed, Jul 3'1, 2019 al9:44 AM Rodney Marvin <rodney.marvin@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:

treff:

I om reguesting sole source approvol in the omount of $29,545 to T.E. Byerly Compony fnc, to provide 9

Peristaltic Chemicol Metering pumps for the Woter Filtrotion Plont. The Woter Plont hos been stondordizing on

Blue/White Peristoltic pumps f or several years. Stondordizotion ollows to more efficient invantory ond

maintenonce. T.E. gyerly Componyisthelocol vendorforthesepumpsond$30,000hosbeenbudgeted inWFP

FyzOin Copital Funds 299.FPz 63000

If opprovad, Cindi will odd this reguest to M&CCagendo for theiropprovol.

Note: Quote is ottoched.

Thonks,

Jeffrey D. Rhodes

https://mail.google.comimail/u/O?ik=f3d50a3ca56.yisw=pt&search=all&permthld=thread-f%3,A1640583719098272373&simpl=msg-f%3A16405837190 '.- 112



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,501                     DATE:    August 13, 2019  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the sole source proposal from the T.E. Byerly Company, Inc., P.O. Box 

247, Brookeville, MD, 20833 to provide nine (9) Peristaltic Chemical Metering Pumps for 

the Water Filtration Plant in the total amount of Twenty-nine Thousand, Five Hundred 

and Forty-five Dollars and No Cents ($29,545.00) be and is hereby accepted. 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

Funding:  299.FP2 63000 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,502 - authorizing the waiver of permit fees for CDBG improvement projects at 

the Riverside and Baltimore Avenue YMCA facilities 

  





- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,502                     DATE:    August 13, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the permit fees for CDBG improvement projects at the Cumberland Riverside 

YMCA, and the Baltimore Avenue YMCA be and are hereby waived. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 
 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,503 - authorizing the waiver of permit fees for CDBG sidewalk improvements 

around Fort Cumberland Homes by the Cumberland Housing Group 

  





- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,503                     DATE:    August 13, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the permit fees for the CDBG sidewalk improvements by the Cumberland 

Housing Group around the perimeter of Fort Cumberland Homes be and are hereby waived. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 
 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,504 - declaring a 2004 Ford Crown Victoria (VIN No. 2FAFP71W64X13543) 

as surplus and authorizing its disposal 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,504                      DATE:    August 13, 2019  
 

 

WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of a 

certain vehicle that has been determined to be of no further value to the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to dispose of said vehicle; 

 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT, the following vehicle is hereby declared to be surplus property 

and authorized for disposal: 

 

2004 Ford Crown Victoria  VIN: 2FAFP71W64X134543 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,505 - authorizing execution of a Letter of Agreement with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc. 

(LSF) pertaining to the CSO Storage Facility at the WWTP Project (1-10-WWTP), 

setting forth terms by which the City shall grant LSF a 102 working day extension of the 

substantial completion date under terms of the original contract 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,505                   DATE:      _ ___August 13, 2019____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Engineer be and is hereby authorized to execute a Letter of 

Agreement with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc. (LSF), on behalf of the Mayor and City Council of 

Cumberland, pertaining to the CSO Storage Facility at the WWTP Project (1-10-WWTP), 

setting forth terms by which the City shall grant LSF a 102 working day extension of the 

substantial completion date under terms of the original contract. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



 

August 7, 2019 
 
Leonard S. Fiore, Inc 
5506 6th Avenue, Rear 
Altoona, PA 16602 
Phone: 814-946-3686 
 
RE: City of Cumberland – CSO Storage Facility (City Project 1-10-WWTP) 
 
Mr. Michael L. Fiore, 
 
I have spoken with the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland as well as City Staff about 
the issue of substantial completion for the CSO Storage Facility project. The City of 
Cumberland (“The City”) is willing to grant Leonard S. Fiore Inc. (“LSF”) a 102 working 
days extension of the substantial completion date under the terms of the contract for 
the above-referenced Project.  LSF requested this extension in your July 24, 2019 e-mail 
to me.   The City is willing to grant this concession due to the abnormally wet weather 
we experienced during the applicable time frame.   The City’s willingness to extend the 
substantial completion date is contingent upon the following terms and conditions: 
 

1. The City shall revise the substantial completion date to 
January 27, 2020, and submit the necessary documentation to the Maryland 
Department of Environment. 

2. LSF shall not request or be entitled to any 
accommodations, contract concessions or contract modifications on 
account of abnormal weather days (related to precipitation, thaw events or 
any other weather conditions) which occurred prior to July 24, 2019 or 
which may occur any time thereafter up to and including January 10, 2020 
(the revised substantial completion date).  

3. Article 12.03 of the contract specification shall still 
apply for the duration of the project. 

4. The City of Cumberland shall continue to pay for all 
Construction Phase Services through final completion of the project. 

5. Beginning on November 6, 2019, LSF shall begin to 
reimburse the City for Construction Phase Services costs in the amount of 
$1,000 per working day., as specified in Article 4.03 of the contract 
specification.  



6. LSF shall reimburse the City for each working day until substantial 
completion is achieved as defined in Article 14.04 of the contract 
specification. 

7. The monthly invoices to the City shall also include any associated overtime 
costs for the City’s resident inspector, as the current process of requesting a 
construction contract credit from MDE for this cost shall be discontinued 
with the execution of the July invoice. 

8. LSF shall also continue to be responsible for any other costs associated with 
engineering services performed by the City’s Engineer of Record (Whitman, 
Requardt, and Associates) for requests that involve revising the contractual 
scope of work. 

9. The City shall provide an invoice to LSF on the first day of each month for 
the previous month’s costs that are defined within this agreement, to which 
LSF shall reimburse the City within 21 calendar days. 

10. Upon LSF successfully achieving substantial completion, LSF shall no longer 
be responsible for Construction Phase Services and the City shall furnish an 
invoice for any outstanding Construction Phase Services Costs within 7 
calendar days. 

11. Article 4.02 defines the final completion phase to be completed within 60 
calendar days. If LSF fails to reach final completion within 60 calendar days 
of substantial completion, the terms of this agreement shall become 
effective until final completion is achieved as defined in the contract 
documents. 

 
Please review the terms and conditions set forth herein as I believe they represent what has been 
discussed to date. If you are in agreement, please sign where indicated below to note LSF’s approval and 
acceptance of these terms.  Please contact me directly if you have any questions. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Robert L. Smith 
City Engineer 
 
CC:   Jeff Rhodes – City Administrator 
 Ken Tressler – City Comptroller 
 Margie Woodring – City Clerk 
 Paul DePalatis 
 Kim Root 
 
APPROVED AND ACCEPTED AS FOLLOWS.  IN SIGNING BELOW I CERTIFY THAT I AM DULY AUTHORIZED 
TO SIGN ON BEHALF OF LSF 
 
LEONARD S. FIORE, INC. 
 
By:__________________________________ 



 
_____________________________________ 
Printed name and position 



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: August 13, 2019 

Agenda Item Number: Enter Text Here 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, Kim Root 

 

Item Title: 

Agreement with Contractor Leonard S. Fiore for CSO Storage Facility at WWTP  

 

Summary: 

Authorize City Engineer Robert Smith to execute agreement with Leonard S. Fiore, contractor for the 

CSO Storage Facility at Waste Water Treatment Plant (City Project 1-10-WWTP),   to have Leonard S. 

Fiore reimburse the City at a rate of $1,000 per working day beginning on November 6, 2019, 

until substantial completion is achieved. 
 

  

 

Issues and Considerations: 

Enter Text Here 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  □ Yes   x  No 

Budget: Enter Text Here 

Value of award: $1,000 per working day 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    x  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes   x  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    □  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    x  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,506 - authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the contract with The EADS Group for 

additional engineering design services to address an additional scope of work for the New 

Baltimore Street Town Center Project (12-16-M) in the increased amount of $311,450, 

bringing the total contract amount to $626,246    

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,506                   DATE:      _ ___August 13, 2019____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 1 with The EADS Group to cover additional engineering design services to 

address an additional scope of work for  the New Baltimore Street Town Center Project 

(12-16-M); and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that Change Order No. 1 be and is hereby 

approved in the increased estimated cost of Three Hundred Eleven Thousand, Four 

Hundred Fifty Dollars and Five Cents ($311,450.05), bringing the total estimated design 

cost to Six Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand, Two Hundred Forty-Six Dollars  and Fifty-

Eight Cents ($626,246.58).  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

Budget: 115.099M.20100 

EADS original award $314,796.53 

Change Order No. 1 + 311,450.05 

New Total $626,246.58 

 



 

 

 

 

30 May 2019 

 

 

City of Cumberland 

Attn: Mr. Paul DePalatis, Project Manager 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

CITY OF CUMBERLAND, ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

BALTIMORE STREET HISTORIC TOWN CENTRE PROJECT 

CHANGE IN ENGINEERING FEES DUE TO REVISED PROJECT SCOPE 

 
 

Dear Mr. Paul DePalatis: 

 

The EADS Group is excited to move forward with the design development and preparation of bid 

documents incorporating the recommendations made by Cochran Studio. We believe the City of 

Cumberland has a unique opportunity to make Baltimore Street a wonderful attraction for all who visit. The 

recommendations made by Cochran and approved by the city have changed and expanded the project scope 

and cost quite substantially, which are not covered by EADS current engineering Agreement. As a result, 

in accordance with Section C2.03C of our Agreement dated September 26, 2017 we are hereby requesting 

approval of an increase to our originally estimated design fees (aka supplement) for the referenced project. 

This supplement supersedes the supplement submitted in February and incorporates the elements of the 

aspirational Master Plan. For reference, this supplement is also accompanied by Appendix A and Appendix 

B, which display a list of previously invoiced services as well as services provided which do not support 

Cochran’s Recommendations and will need redone.  We are submitting this supplement to the City of 

Cumberland for review and approval. 

 

 

Revised Engineering Services – Incorporating Cochran Studio’s Aspirational Master Plan 

 

We have evaluated our total engineering fee of this revised project by percent of construction cost and labor 

required to complete the design and prepare bid documents.  The resultant total engineering fee is $548,000.  

Also, the original scope of work was expected to be constructed in one construction season.  Since the 

project’s scope and cost have escalated significantly, we now believe the project will need to be completed 

over the course of two construction seasons.  Accordingly, an additional fee for Construction Phase Services 

– Year 2 is added below. 

 

Through March 2019, EADS has invoiced the City of Cumberland $179,095.28. Of this sum, $58,285.60 

of invoiced labor is work that must be redone in order to implement the recommendations of Cochran Studio 

and is thus included in the Engineering Fee (See Appendix B).  The remaining invoiced labor of 

$120,809.68 is previously completed work which can be salvaged and will be subtracted from the 

Engineering Fee. The remaining non-invoiced fee of $135,740.27 from our original agreement will also be 

subtracted from the Engineering Fee. 

 





 

APPENDIX A 

 

Previously Invoiced Engineering Services  

 

      Items 

 

1. Surveying 

2. Base Mapping 

3. Street Layout (w/ 15’-0” Road Width) 

4. On-site Manhole Investigations 

5. Shift Space Investigation 

6. On-site Basement Investigation 

7. Cardno Utility Investigation and Coordination 

8. Cross Sections 

9. Roadway Barricade Investigation 

10. Preliminary Traffic Signal Design 

11. Preliminary Grading Design 

12. Preliminary Stormwater Layout 

13. Preliminary Drainage Design 

14. Preliminary Lighting Layout 

15. Preliminary Tree Layout 

16. Utility Relocation Design 

17. London Plane Trees Investigation 

18. Silva Cells Investigation 

19. William Cochran Correspondence  

20. Road Width Analysis 

21. Mechanic Street Bump Out 

22. Utility Relocation Associated with Silva Cells 

23. Woonerf Investigation 

24. Preliminary Water Line Design 

25. Preliminary Electrical Design Started 

26. Review/Extract Cochran Recommendations 

27. 4/23/19 Scope Clarification Meeting 

28. Prepare Construction Cost Estimate 

  

 

 TOTAL…………………………………………...………………………...………$179,095.28 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

APPENDIX B 

 

Previously Invoiced Engineering Services 

Which Need Redone to Conform with Cochran’s Recommendations 

 

      Items                   Hours                 Rate   Item Total 

 

1. Shift Space Investigation   4 $ 142.95 (2018) $    571.80 

2. Basement Investigation (1)   8 142.95 (2018) 1,143.60 

3. Basement Investigation (1)   8   85.35 (2018)    682.80 

4. Cross Sections 120   85.35 (2018) 10,242.00 

5. Preliminary Grading Design 75 85.35 (2018) 6,401.25 

6. Preliminary Stormwater Layout 24 85.35 (2018) 2,048.40 

7. Preliminary Drainage Design 26 85.35 (2018) 2,219.10 

8. Preliminary Lighting Investigation & Layout 68 85.35 (2018) 5,803.80 

9. Preliminary Tree Layout 18 85.35 (2018) 1,536.30 

10. London Plane Trees Investigation 12   85.35 (2018) 1,024.20 

11. Silva Cells Investigation 30   85.35 (2018) 2,560.50 

12. William Cochran Coordination 15   85.35 (2018) 1,280.25 

13. Road Width Analysis 12   85.35 (2018) 1,024.20 

14. Mechanic Street Bump Out 15   85.35 (2018) 1,280.25 

15. Utility Relocation 36   85.35 (2018) 3,072.60 

16. Woonerf Investigation 12   85.35 (2018) 1,024.20 

17. Water Line Layout 15   85.35  (2018) 1,280.35 

18. Review/Extract Cochran Recommendations 20   88.50  (2019)    1,770.00 

19. Review/Extract Cochran Recommendations   4 142.95  (2019) 571.80 

20. 4/23/19 Scope Clarification Meeting   6 88.50 (2019) 531.00 

21. 4/23/19 Scope Clarification Meeting   6 142.95 (2019) 857.70 

22. Prepare Construction Cost Estimate 72   88.50 (2019) 6,372.00 

23. Prepare Construction Cost Estimate   4 142.95 (2019) 571.80 

24. Prepare Change in Estimated Engineering Fee 40   88.50 (2019) 3,540.00 

25. Prepare Change in Estimated Engineering Fee   6 142.95 (2019)  571.80 

   756 Hrs  $58,285.60 

 

 TOTAL…………………………………………...………………………...………$ 58,285.60 

 

Notes:   

 

1. As part of our due diligence, EADS performed an investigation of basements 

protruding under the public sidewalk. Due to lack of owner responses, the investigation 

required increased coordination efforts and multiple trips to Cumberland. This 

investigation proved to be more extensive than anticipated, therefore EADS is 

requesting a supplement for additional time spent on basement investigation. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

30 May 2019 

 

JULY 2019 – DEC 2019  DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 
      (1ST SHA SUBMISSION) 
 
JAN 2020      SHA REVIEW #1 

FEB 2020 – MAR 2020  PREPARE BID DOCUMENTS 
      (2ND SHA SUBMISSION) 
 
APRIL 2020    SHA REVIEW #2 

MAY 2020    BIDDING PHASE 

AUG 2020     ISSUE NOTICE TO PROCEED   



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: August 13, 2019 

Agenda Item Number:  

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, Kim Root 

 

Item Title: 

City Engineer to Execute change in work order with The EADS Group for the New Baltimore Street Final 

Design.   

 

Summary: 

 The City's design consultant, the EADS Group, has request an increase in their engineering fees as 

permitted per our contract. EADS believes that the changes to the scope will require additional 

manhours/resources to complete the project and they are due a time extension in order to deliver 

comprehensive contract documents. The value of the original contract was finalized in September of 2017 

for a total estimated cost of $314,796. The Cochran study was provided to EADS on March 21,2019, and 

after reviewing the study, they requested an increase to the contract of $311,450 (on 5/30/2019) to bring 

the total estimated design cost to $626,246.  

  

Issues and Considerations: 

City Engineer to execute the agreement for change in work to add the additional fees and time to the 

current contract.  

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  x Yes   □  No 

Budget: 115.099M.20100 

Value of award: $311,450 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes    x  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    □  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes   x  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,507 - authorizing Change Order No. 5 to the contract with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc. 

for the Phase 1 CSO Storage Facility at WWTP Project (01-10-WWTP) for an increased 

amount of $2,820.83 and 102 additional non-compensable working days, bringing the 

new total contract amount to $26,364,856.88 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,507                   DATE:      _ ___August 13, 2019____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 1 with The EADS Group to cover additional engineering design services to 

address an additional scope of work for  the New Baltimore Street Town Center Project 

(12-16-M); and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that Change Order No. 1 be and is hereby 

approved in the increased estimated cost of Three Hundred Eleven Thousand, Four 

Hundred Fifty Dollars and Five Cents ($311,450.05), bringing the total estimated design 

cost to Six Hundred Twenty-Six Thousand, Two Hundred Forty-Six Dollars  and Fifty-

Eight Cents ($626,246.58).  

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

Budget: 115.099M.20100 

EADS original award $314,796.53 

Change Order No. 1 + 311,450.05 

New Total $626,246.58 

 



EJCI,}C#
INGI\EENS JO]NI (;CIIIIA{]i
0CaU tlEr":s aOl+\4i?TEa

Change Order No 5

Date of lssuance: August 8,2019

Owner: City of Cumberland, MD

Contractor: Leonard S. Fiore, lnc.

Engineer: Whitman, Requardt, and Associates, LLP

Project: Phase 1 CSO Storage Facility at the
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Effective Date: August 8, 201,9

Owner's Contract No.: 01--IO-WWTP

Contractor's Project No.: CT-0365

Engineer's Project No.: 13993-003

Contract Name: Phase 1 CSO Storage Facility at the
Wastewater Treatme nt Plant

The Contract is modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order

1) lncludes a non-compensable time extension of one hundred and two (102) working days or one
hundred forty six (146) calendar days due to unforeseen weather conditions impacting critical path

work items.

2) lncludes Modifications of fill concrete at the pumping station and associated labor. See Attachment
A5-1.

Attochments: Attochme nts A5-7

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES

[note changes in Milestones if applicoble]
Origina I Contract Times:Original Contract Price
SubstantialCompl etion: 760

s 26.41,6.340.00 Ready for Final Paymen t: 82O

[r""'."""] [Decrease] from previously approved Change

Orders No. 0 to No. 4 :

s (s4.303.9s)

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:

s 26.362.036.05

Ilncrease] [s""'""""] of this Change Order:

s 2,820.83

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order

s26,364,856

MENDED

By:

Engineer (if required)

Ilncrease] [s""'""*] from previously approved Change

Orders No. 0 to No. 4 :

Substa ntial Com pletion 60

Ready for Final Payment: 50

Contract Times prior to this Change Order:

Substantial Comp letion: 802
Ready for Final Payment: 862

[lncrease] [8."**"] of this Change Order:

Substantial Completion 146

Ready for Final Payment 146

Contract Times with all approved Change Orders

Substantial Completion 948

Ready for Final Payment 1.008

ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED

By:

Owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signatu re)

Title

Date

Date

By

Title

Date

By:

Title

k<<r'rc t Title

Date

Approved by Funding Agency (if
applicable)

EJCDC' C-941, Change Order.

Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee
Page 1 of 1



Attachment A5-1





















Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: August 13, 2019 

Agenda Item Number:  

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, Kim Root 

 

Item Title: 

Execute change order no. 5 for the current contract with Leonard S. Fiore, Inc for City Project 
01-10-WWTP 

 

Summary: 

This change order no. 5 includes a non- compensable time extension of one hundred and two (102) 

working days due to unforeseen weather conditions impacting critical path work items.  And also 

included modification of fill concrete at the pumping station in the increased amount of $2,820.83.   

 

Issues and Considerations: 

City Administrator to execute change order no. 5. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  x Yes   □  No 

Budget: 003.399CS.63000 

Value of award: $2,820.83 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  x  Yes    □  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  x  Yes    □  No   

Match provisions: 87.5% Grant / 12.5% Loan (MDE Reimbursements) 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    x  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order No. 26,508 - rescinding Order No. 26,426 authorizing execution of a Cooperation 

Agreement pertaining to River Bend Court, LP and authorizing execution of Cooperation 

Agreements with The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland to update and 

standardize the terms of public housing development agreements for Banneker Gardens, 

River Bend Court, LP, Wills Creek View, LP, Fort Cumberland Homes, John F. Kennedy 

Homes, Jane Frazier Village, Queen City Tower, and Willow Valley Apartments  

  





- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,508                   DATE:      _ ___August 13, 2019____ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, Order No. 26,426, passed March 19, 2019, authorizing execution of a 

Cooperation Agreement pertaining to River Bend Court, LP be and is hereby rescinded; 

and  

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to 

execute Cooperation Agreements by and between The Housing Authority for the City of 

Cumberland and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland to update and standardize 

the terms of agreements for the following public housing developments in the City of 

Cumberland: 

1.  Banneker Gardens 

2.  River Bend Court, LP 

3.  Wills Creek View, LP 

4.  Fort Cumberland Homes 

5.  John F. Kennedy Homes 

6.  Jane Frazier Village 

7.  Queen City Tower 

8.  Willow Valley Apartments 

  

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 







COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
Banneker Gardens 

 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Local Authority received from the United States of America, acting through 

the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division (referred to as HUD) a 

program reservation for 300 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are located within the 

corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County Maryland;  

WHEREAS, The Local Authority and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement on July 17, 

1950 and amended since then, providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent housing projects 

developed and to be developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial assistance of the 

United States of America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Local Authority also entered into an identical Cooperation Agreement with 

Allegany County, Maryland (referred to as the County);  

WHEREAS, thirty (30) of these units were originally located in the development referred to as 

Benjamin Banneker Apartments which was demolished in 2007 and replaced with twenty-five (25) units 

in the development referred to as Banneker Gardens, located at 326 Frederick Street; and 

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with Allegany County. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 25 units of low-rent housing known as Banneker 

Gardens previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of 

Cumberland with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the 

Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 

cost to the Local Authority of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

Banneker Gardens 

 

 

 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) Local Authority shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for loans and 

annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, City agrees that it will not levy or impose any 

real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon Local Authority with respect thereto. 

During such period the Local Authority shall make annual payments (herein called Payments In 

Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and in 

payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by Local Authority in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of Local Authority to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any project or 

assets of Local Authority shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany County, and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said County shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the Local Authority 

to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the Local Authority 

and accepted by the City only as long as:  

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

Banneker Gardens 

 

 

 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  

(b)  The Local Authority, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City is authorized to enter 

into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies with all 

of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the Local Authority provides the City or its 

authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order to 

ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the Local Authority nor any successor-in-interest to the Local Authority with respect to 

this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize any 

incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the Local Authority which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes due and 

payable to the City based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in subsection (a) of 

this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said subsection (a).  

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit the Local 

Authority from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a reduction or elimination 

of the Local Authority or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes that are due and payable to any 

entity other than the City with regard to the aforesaid property and any other real estate in the area 

which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, or 

both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City, 

without cost or charge to the Local Authority or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority and the tenants of such project (i) the 

public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost or 

charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City, including but not limited to: fire, police 

and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

Banneker Gardens 

 

 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the Local Authority by such other lawful action or ways as the City and the 

Local Authority may find necessary in connection with the development and administration 

of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the Local 

Authority to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s physical 

inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City Code.  

Therefore, the Local Authority shall not be subject to the City’s rental inspection requirements so 

long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent than the 

standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted to 

perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the Local Authority, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority, or to any project, then the 

Local Authority may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct the cost 

thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City in respect to any 

project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the Local Authority or the 

Local Authority shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the Local Authority 

or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law to 

engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany County, 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

Banneker Gardens 

 

 

 

Maryland.  The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or 

that it constitutes an inconvenient forum. 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the Local Authority have respectively caused this agreement to 

be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

 

WITNESS: THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

CITY OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND 

 

  

______________________________ By: __________________________________ 

       STEVEN J. KESNER 

       President/Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

 

 

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

       RAYMOND M. MORRISS 

       Mayor 



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
Queen City Tower 

 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Local Authority received from the United States of America, acting through 

the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division (referred to as HUD) a 

program reservation for 200 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are located within the 

corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County Maryland;  

WHEREAS, The Local Authority and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement on May 10, 

1963 and amended since then, providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent housing projects 

developed and to be developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial assistance of the 

United States of America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Local Authority also entered into an identical Cooperation Agreement with 

Allegany County, Maryland (referred to as the County);  

WHEREAS, ninety-five (95) of these units are located in the development referred to as Queen 

City Tower located at 235 Paca Street; and  

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with Allegany County. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 95 units of low-rent housing known as Queen City 

Tower previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of Cumberland 

with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the Maryland 

Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 

cost to the Local Authority of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

Queen City Tower 

 

 

 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) Local Authority shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for loans and 

annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, City agrees that it will not levy or impose any 

real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon Local Authority with respect thereto. 

During such period the Local Authority shall make annual payments (herein called Payments In 

Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and in 

payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by Local Authority in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of Local Authority to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any project or 

assets of Local Authority shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany County, and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said County shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the Local Authority 

to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the Local Authority 

and accepted by the City only as long as:  

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

Queen City Tower 

 

 

 

(b)  The Local Authority, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City is authorized to enter 

into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies with all 

of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the Local Authority provides the City or its 

authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order to 

ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the Local Authority nor any successor-in-interest to the Local Authority with respect to 

this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize any 

incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the Local Authority which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes due and 

payable to the City based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in subsection (a) of 

this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said subsection (a).  

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit the Local 

Authority from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a reduction or elimination 

of the Local Authority or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes that are due and payable to any 

entity other than the City with regard to the aforesaid property and any other real estate in the area 

which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, or 

both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City, 

without cost or charge to the Local Authority or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority and the tenants of such project (i) the 

public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost or 

charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City, including but not limited to: fire, police 

and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

Queen City Tower 

 

 

 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the Local Authority by such other lawful action or ways as the City and the 

Local Authority may find necessary in connection with the development and administration 

of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the Local 

Authority to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s physical 

inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City Code.  

Therefore, the Local Authority shall not be subject to the City’s rental inspection requirements so 

long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent than the 

standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted to 

perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the Local Authority, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority, or to any project, then the 

Local Authority may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct the cost 

thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City in respect to any 

project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the Local Authority or the 

Local Authority shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the Local Authority 

or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law to 

engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany County, 

Maryland.  The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or 

that it constitutes an inconvenient forum. 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

Queen City Tower 

 

 

 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the Local Authority have respectively caused this agreement to 

be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

 

WITNESS: THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

CITY OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND 

 

  

______________________________ By: __________________________________ 

       STEVEN J. KESNER 

       President/Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

 

 

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

       RAYMOND M. MORRISS 

       Mayor 



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
Willow Valley Apartments 

 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Housing Authority of Allegany County received from the United States of 

America, acting through the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division 

(referred to as HUD) a program reservation for 34 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are 

located at 701 Furnace Street within the corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County 

Maryland referred to as the County Infirmary Elderly Housing Project/Willow Valley Apartments; 

WHEREAS, The Housing Authority of Allegany County and the County entered into a 

Cooperation Agreement on January 20, 1982, providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent 

housing projects developed and to be developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial 

assistance of the United States of America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to 

as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of Allegany County also entered into an identical 

Cooperation Agreement with the City of Cumberland, Maryland (referred to as the City);  

WHEREAS, with the approval of HUD, the City and the County, the Housing Authority of 

Allegany County was transferred into the Local Authority effective April 1, 2019 with no change in 

mission, program affiliation or general operations; and 

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with Allegany County. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 34 units of low-rent housing known as Willow Valley 

Apartments previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of 

Cumberland with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the 

Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 

cost to the Local Authority of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

Willow Valley Apartments 

 

 

 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) Local Authority shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for loans and 

annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, City agrees that it will not levy or impose any 

real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon Local Authority with respect thereto. 

During such period the Local Authority shall make annual payments (herein called Payments In 

Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and in 

payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by Local Authority in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of Local Authority to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any project or 

assets of Local Authority shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany County, and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said County shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the Local Authority 

to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the Local Authority 

and accepted by the City only as long as:  



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

Willow Valley Apartments 

 

 

 

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  

(b)  The Local Authority, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City is authorized to enter 

into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies with all 

of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the Local Authority provides the City or its 

authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order to 

ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the Local Authority nor any successor-in-interest to the Local Authority with respect to 

this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize any 

incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the Local Authority which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes due and 

payable to the City based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in subsection (a) of 

this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said subsection (a).  

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit the Local 

Authority from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a reduction or elimination 

of the Local Authority or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes that are due and payable to any 

entity other than the City with regard to the aforesaid property and any other real estate in the area 

which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, or 

both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City, 

without cost or charge to the Local Authority or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority and the tenants of such project (i) the 

public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost or 

charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City, including but not limited to: fire, police 

and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

Willow Valley Apartments 

 

 

 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the Local Authority by such other lawful action or ways as the City and the 

Local Authority may find necessary in connection with the development and administration 

of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the Local 

Authority to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s physical 

inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City Code.  

Therefore, the Local Authority shall not be subject to the City’s rental inspection requirements so 

long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent than the 

standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted to 

perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the Local Authority, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority, or to any project, then the 

Local Authority may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct the cost 

thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City in respect to any 

project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the Local Authority or the 

Local Authority shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the Local Authority 

or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law to 

engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

Willow Valley Apartments 

 

 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany County, 

Maryland.  The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or 

that it constitutes an inconvenient forum. 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the Local Authority have respectively caused this agreement to 

be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

 

WITNESS: THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

CITY OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND 

 

  

______________________________ By: __________________________________ 

       STEVEN J. KESNER 

       President/Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

 

 

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

       RAYMOND M. MORRISS 

       Mayor 



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
Fort Cumberland Homes 

 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Local Authority received from the United States of America, acting through 

the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division (referred to as HUD) a 

program reservation for 300 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are located within the 

corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County Maryland;  

WHEREAS, The Local Authority and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement on July 17, 

1950, and amended since then, providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent housing projects 

developed and to be developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial assistance of the 

United States of America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Local Authority also entered into an identical Cooperation Agreement with 

Allegany County, Maryland (referred to as the County);  

WHEREAS, eighty (80) of these units are located in the development referred to as Fort 

Cumberland Homes located within the area bordered by West Oldtown Road and Lamont Street; and 

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with Allegany County. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 80 units of low-rent housing known as Fort Cumberland 

Homes previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of 

Cumberland with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the 

Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 

cost to the Local Authority of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

Fort Cumberland Homes 

 

 

 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) Local Authority shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for loans and 

annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, City agrees that it will not levy or impose any 

real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon Local Authority with respect thereto. 

During such period the Local Authority shall make annual payments (herein called Payments In 

Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and in 

payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by Local Authority in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of Local Authority to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any project or 

assets of Local Authority shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany County, and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said County shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the Local Authority 

to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the Local Authority 

and accepted by the City only as long as:  

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

Fort Cumberland Homes 

 

 

 

(b)  The Local Authority, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City is authorized to enter 

into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies with all 

of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the Local Authority provides the City or its 

authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order to 

ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the Local Authority nor any successor-in-interest to the Local Authority with respect to 

this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize any 

incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the Local Authority which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes due and 

payable to the City based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in subsection (a) of 

this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said subsection (a).  

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit the Local 

Authority from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a reduction or elimination 

of the Local Authority or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes that are due and payable to any 

entity other than the City with regard to the aforesaid property and any other real estate in the area 

which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, or 

both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City, 

without cost or charge to the Local Authority or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority and the tenants of such project (i) the 

public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost or 

charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City, including but not limited to: fire, police 

and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

Fort Cumberland Homes 

 

 

 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the Local Authority by such other lawful action or ways as the City and the 

Local Authority may find necessary in connection with the development and administration 

of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the Local 

Authority to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s physical 

inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City Code.  

Therefore, the Local Authority shall not be subject to the City’s rental inspection requirements so 

long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent than the 

standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted to 

perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the Local Authority, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority, or to any project, then the 

Local Authority may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct the cost 

thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City in respect to any 

project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the Local Authority or the 

Local Authority shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the Local Authority 

or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law to 

engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany County, 

Maryland.  The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or 

that it constitutes an inconvenient forum. 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

Fort Cumberland Homes 

 

 

 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the Local Authority have respectively caused this agreement to 

be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

 

WITNESS: THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

CITY OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND 

 

  

______________________________ By: __________________________________ 

       STEVEN J. KESNER 

       President/Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

 

 

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

       RAYMOND M. MORRISS 

       Mayor 



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
John F. Kennedy Homes 

 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Local Authority received from the United States of America, acting through 

the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division (referred to as HUD) a 

program reservation for 200 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are located within the 

corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County Maryland;  

WHEREAS, The Local Authority and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement on May 10, 

1963 and amended since then, providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent housing projects 

developed and to be developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial assistance of the 

United States of America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Local Authority also entered into an identical Cooperation Agreement with 

Allegany County, Maryland (referred to as the County);  

WHEREAS, one hundred (100) of these units are located in the development referred to as John 

F. Kennedy Homes, located at 135 North Mechanic Street; and  

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with Allegany County. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 100 units of low-rent housing known as John F. 

Kennedy Homes previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of 

Cumberland with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the 

Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 

cost to the Local Authority of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

John F. Kennedy Homes 

 

 

 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) Local Authority shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for loans and 

annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, City agrees that it will not levy or impose any 

real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon Local Authority with respect thereto. 

During such period the Local Authority shall make annual payments (herein called Payments In 

Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and in 

payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by Local Authority in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of Local Authority to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any project or 

assets of Local Authority shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany County, and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said County shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the Local Authority 

to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the Local Authority 

and accepted by the City only as long as:  

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

John F. Kennedy Homes 

 

 

 

(b)  The Local Authority, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City is authorized to enter 

into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies with all 

of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the Local Authority provides the City or its 

authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order to 

ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the Local Authority nor any successor-in-interest to the Local Authority with respect to 

this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize any 

incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the Local Authority which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes due and 

payable to the City based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in subsection (a) of 

this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said subsection (a).  

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit the Local 

Authority from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a reduction or elimination 

of the Local Authority or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes that are due and payable to any 

entity other than the City with regard to the aforesaid property and any other real estate in the area 

which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, or 

both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City, 

without cost or charge to the Local Authority or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority and the tenants of such project (i) the 

public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost or 

charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City, including but not limited to: fire, police 

and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

John F. Kennedy Homes 

 

 

 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the Local Authority by such other lawful action or ways as the City and the 

Local Authority may find necessary in connection with the development and administration 

of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the Local 

Authority to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s physical 

inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City Code.  

Therefore, the Local Authority shall not be subject to the City’s rental inspection requirements so 

long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent than the 

standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted to 

perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the Local Authority, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority, or to any project, then the 

Local Authority may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct the cost 

thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City in respect to any 

project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the Local Authority or the 

Local Authority shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the Local Authority 

or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law to 

engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany County, 

Maryland.  The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or 

that it constitutes an inconvenient forum. 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

John F. Kennedy Homes 

 

 

 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the Local Authority have respectively caused this agreement to 

be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

 

WITNESS: THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

CITY OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND 

 

  

______________________________ By: __________________________________ 

       STEVEN J. KESNER 

       President/Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

 

 

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

       RAYMOND M. MORRISS 

       Mayor 



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
Wills Creek View, LP 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Local Authority received from the United States of America, acting through 

the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division (referred to as HUD) a 

program reservation for 100 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are located within the 

corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County Maryland;  

WHEREAS, The Local Authority and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement on May 10, 

1963 providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent housing projects developed and to be 

developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial assistance of the United States of 

America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Local Authority also entered into an identical Cooperation Agreement with the 

County; and 

WHEREAS, these one hundred (100) units are located in the development referred to as John F. 

Kennedy Homes located at 135 North Mechanic Street;  

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with the County; and 

WHEREAS, Local Authority began the conversion of John F. Kennedy Homes to a Rental 

Assistance Demonstration (“RAD”) project in 2019. In pursuit of that conversion, Local Authority will 

transfer John F. Kennedy Homes to Wills Creek View LP, which will be responsible for the payments 

and provisions provided for in this Agreement.  John F. Kennedy Homes will be known as “Wills Creek 

View LP” and the Local Authority is hereby changed to Wills Creek View LP. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 100 units of low-rent housing known as Wills Creek 

View LP previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of 

Cumberland with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the 

Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 

cost to the Wills Creek View LP of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

Wills Creek View LP 

 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) Wills Creek View LP shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for 

loans and annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the Wills Creek View LP and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual 

contributions, or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, County agrees that it will not levy or impose 

any real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon Wills Creek View LP with respect thereto. 

During such period the Wills Creek View LP shall make annual payments (herein called Payments 

In Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and 

in payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by Wills Creek View LP in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of Wills Creek View LP to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any 

project or assets of Wills Creek View LP shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany City , and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City  shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said City  shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the Wills Creek View 

LP to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the Wills Creek 

View LP and accepted by the City only as long as:  

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

Wills Creek View LP 

 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  

(b)  The Wills Creek View LP, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City  is authorized to 

enter into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies 

with all of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the Wills Creek View LP provides the City or 

its authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order 

to ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the Wills Creek View LP nor any successor-in-interest to the Wills Creek View LP with 

respect to this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize 

any incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the Wills Creek View LP which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes 

due and payable to the City  based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in 

subsection (a) of this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said 

subsection (a).  Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit 

the Wills Creek View LP from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a 

reduction or elimination of the Wills Creek View LP or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes 

that are due and payable to any entity other than the City  with regard to the aforesaid property and 

any other real estate in the area which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between Wills Creek View LP and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City , 

without cost or charge to the Wills Creek View LP or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the Wills Creek View LP and the tenants of such project 

(i) the public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost 

or charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City , including but not limited to: fire, 

police and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

Wills Creek View LP 

 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the Wills Creek View LP by such other lawful action or ways as the City and 

the Wills Creek View LP may find necessary in connection with the development and 

administration of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the Wills 

Creek View LP to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s 

physical inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City 

Code.  Therefore, the Wills Creek View LP shall not be subject to the City ’s rental inspection 

requirements so long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent 

than the standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted 

to perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ 

notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the Wills Creek View LP, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the Wills Creek View LP, or to any project, then 

the Wills Creek View LP may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct 

the cost thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City  in respect to 

any project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the Wills Creek View LP 

or the Wills Creek View LP shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the Wills Creek View LP and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the Wills Creek View 

LP or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law 

to engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany City, Maryland.  

The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or that it 

constitutes an inconvenient forum. 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

Wills Creek View LP 

 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the Wills Creek View LP have respectively caused this 

agreement to be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

WITNESS:                                                      WILLS CREEK VIEW, LP 

                                                                        By: Wills Creek View, LLC, its General Partner 

                                                                        By:   Cumberland Housing Alliance, Inc. its Sole Member 

                                                                        By:   The Housing Authority of the City of Cumberland,  

                                                                                 Maryland, its Sole Owner 

  

______________________________            By:  __________________________________ 

                                                                                 STEVEN J. KESNER 

                                                                                 President/Chief Executive Officer 

  

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND

  

 

 

_______________________________ By:  ___________________________________ 

  RAYMOND MORRISS 

Mayor 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
River Bend Court, LP 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Local Authority received from the United States of America, acting through 

the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division (referred to as HUD) a 

program reservation for 80 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are located within the 

corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County Maryland;  

WHEREAS, The Local Authority and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement on July 17, 

1950 providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent housing projects developed and to be 

developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial assistance of the United States of 

America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Local Authority also entered into an identical Cooperation Agreement with the 

County; and 

WHEREAS, these eighty (80) units are located in the development referred to as Fort 

Cumberland Homes located within the area bordered by West Oldtown Road and Lamont Street;  

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with the County; and 

WHEREAS, Local Authority began the conversion of Fort Cumberland Homes to a Rental 

Assistance Demonstration (“RAD”) project in 2019. In pursuit of that conversion, Local Authority 

transferred Fort Cumberland Homes to River Bend Court LP, which will be responsible for the payments 

and provisions provided for in this Agreement.  A further result of the conversion to RAD was the 

reduction of units from 80 to 77 units.  Fort Cumberland Homes will be known as “River Bend Court 

LP” and the Local Authority is hereby changed to River Bend Court LP. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 77 units of low-rent housing known as River Bend Court 

LP previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of Cumberland 

with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the Maryland 

Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

River Bend Court LP 

 

cost to the River Bend Court LP of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) River Bend Court LP shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for loans 

and annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the River Bend Court LP and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual 

contributions, or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, County agrees that it will not levy or impose 

any real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon River Bend Court LP with respect thereto. 

During such period the River Bend Court LP shall make annual payments (herein called Payments 

In Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and 

in payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by River Bend Court LP in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of River Bend Court LP to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any 

project or assets of River Bend Court LP shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany City , and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City  shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said City  shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the River Bend Court 

LP to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the River Bend 

Court LP and accepted by the City only as long as:  



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

River Bend Court LP 

 

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  

(b)  The River Bend Court LP, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City  is authorized to 

enter into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies 

with all of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the River Bend Court LP provides the City or 

its authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order 

to ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the River Bend Court LP nor any successor-in-interest to the River Bend Court LP with 

respect to this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize 

any incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the River Bend Court LP which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes due 

and payable to the City  based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in subsection 

(a) of this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said subsection (a).  

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit the River Bend 

Court LP from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a reduction or elimination 

of the River Bend Court LP or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes that are due and payable 

to any entity other than the City  with regard to the aforesaid property and any other real estate in 

the area which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between River Bend Court LP and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City , 

without cost or charge to the River Bend Court LP or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the River Bend Court LP and the tenants of such project (i) 

the public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost or 

charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City , including but not limited to: fire, police 

and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

River Bend Court LP 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the River Bend Court LP by such other lawful action or ways as the City and 

the River Bend Court LP may find necessary in connection with the development and 

administration of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the River 

Bend Court LP to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s 

physical inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City 

Code.  Therefore, the River Bend Court LP shall not be subject to the City ’s rental inspection 

requirements so long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent 

than the standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted 

to perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ 

notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the River Bend Court LP, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the River Bend Court LP, or to any project, then 

the River Bend Court LP may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct 

the cost thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City  in respect to 

any project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the River Bend Court LP 

or the River Bend Court LP shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the River Bend Court LP and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the River Bend Court 

LP or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law 

to engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany City, Maryland.  



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

River Bend Court LP 

 

The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or that it 

constitutes an inconvenient forum. 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the River Bend Court LP have respectively caused this 

agreement to be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

WITNESS:                                                      RIVER BEND COURT, LP 

                                                                        By: River Bend Court, LLC, its General Partner 

                                                                        By:   Cumberland Housing Alliance, Inc. its Sole Member 

                                                                        By:   The Housing Authority of the City of Cumberland,  

                                                                                 Maryland, its Sole Owner 

  

______________________________            By:  __________________________________ 

                                                                                 STEVEN J. KESNER 

                                                                                 President/Chief Executive Officer 

  

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND

  

 

 

_______________________________ By:  ___________________________________ 

  RAYMOND MORRISS 

Mayor 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
Jane Frazier Village 

 

 

This Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) entered into this ____ day of ___________, 2019, 

by and between The Housing Authority for the City of Cumberland (referred to as the Local 

Authority) and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland (referred to as the City), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, The Local Authority received from the United States of America, acting through 

the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, Public Housing Division (referred to as HUD) a 

program reservation for 300 units of low-rent housing that were developed and are located within the 

corporate limits of the City of Cumberland in Allegany County Maryland;  

WHEREAS, The Local Authority and City entered into a Cooperation Agreement on July 17, 

1950, and amended since then, providing for aid and cooperation in respect to low-rent housing projects 

developed and to be developed and operated by the Local Authority with the financial assistance of the 

United States of America pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 (referred to as the Act); 

WHEREAS, the Local Authority also entered into an identical Cooperation Agreement with 

Allegany County, Maryland (referred to as the County);  

WHEREAS, one hundred twenty-five (125) of these units are located in the development 

referred to as Jane Frazier Village located within the blocks bordered by East First Street, Memorial 

Avenue and Sommerville Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, in an effort to update and streamline the multiple existing Agreements, the parties 

wish to enter into this new Cooperation Agreement and the Local Authority will enter into an identical 

agreement with Allegany County. 

   

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE: 

(1) Whenever used in this agreement: 

(a) The term “project” shall mean those 125 units of low-rent housing known as Jane Frazier 

Village previously developed and owned by the Housing Authority of the City of 

Cumberland with financial assistance and regulatory requirements from HUD and/or the 

Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development (referred to as DHCD). 

(b) The term “taxing body” shall mean the State of Maryland or any political subdivision or 

taxing unit thereof (including the City) in which a project is situated and which would have 

authority to assess or levy real or personal property taxes or to certify such taxes to a taxing 

body or public officer to be levied for its use and benefit with respect to a project if it were not 

exempt from taxation. 

(c) The term “shelter rent” shall mean the total of all charges to all tenants of a project for 

dwelling rents and non-dwelling rents (excluding all other income of such project), less the 

cost to the Local Authority of all dwelling and non-dwelling utilities. 

(d) The term “slum” shall mean any area where unsafe and insanitary dwelling units predominate 

i.e. which by reason of dilapidation, overcrowding, faulty arrangement of design, lack of 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 2 of 5 

Jane Frazier Village 

 

 

 

ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or any combination of these factors, are detrimental to 

safety, health or morals. 

(2) Local Authority shall endeavor to maintain a contract or contracts with HUD/DHCD for loans and 

annual contributions and undertake the administration of this project. 

(3) Under the constitution and statutes of the State of Maryland, all projects are exempt from all real 

and personal property taxes and special assessments levied or imposed by any taxing body; and 

with respect to any project, so long as either: 

(a)  such project is used for low-rent housing purpose; or  

(b)  any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, 

or both, in connection with such project, remains in force or effective; or  

(c)  any bonds issued or monies due to HUD/DHCD in connection with such project shall remain 

outstanding, whichever period is the longest, City agrees that it will not levy or impose any 

real or personal property taxes, special assessments, registration or licensing fees or other 

financial obligations upon such project, or upon Local Authority with respect thereto. 

During such period the Local Authority shall make annual payments (herein called Payments In 

Lieu Of Taxes) in lieu of such taxes, special assessments, fees or other financial obligations, and in 

payment for public services and facilities furnished for or with respect to such project. Each such 

annual payment in lieu of taxes shall be made at the time when real property taxes on such project 

would be paid if it were subject to taxation, and shall be in an amount equal to either: 

(a)  10% of the aggregate shelter rent charged by Local Authority in respect to such project 

during the tax year for which such payment is made, or  

(b)  the amount to be permitted to be paid by applicable state law in effect on the date of this 

co-operative agreement, whichever amount is the lower; provided, however, that upon failure 

of Local Authority to make any such payments in lieu of taxes, no lien against any project or 

assets of Local Authority shall attach. 

  The City agrees that payments in lieu of taxes made under this contract shall be distributed 

annually as follows: 20% to Allegany County, and 80% to the City of Cumberland; provided, 

however, that the total payment for any year made to the City shall not be in excess of the total 

amount of real property taxes which would have been paid on such properties for such year if the 

said properties were not exempt from taxation, and provided that the total payments for any year 

made to said County shall not be in excess of the total amount of real property taxes which would 

have to be paid to them on such properties for such year if the said projects were not exempt from 

taxation. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the payments to be made by the Local Authority 

to the City, provided for herein with respect to the project, shall be made by the Local Authority 

and accepted by the City only as long as:  

(a)  The project shall be owned and used for the provision of rental housing and “service 

facilities” as permitted section 7-505 of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 3 of 5 

Jane Frazier Village 

 

 

 

Maryland, as amended from time to time;  

(b)  The Local Authority, in all respects, complies with and satisfies the requirements of said 

section 7-505, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the City is authorized to enter 

into an agreement for the payment of negotiated sums in lieu of taxes, and complies with all 

of its obligations under the terms of this Agreement; and  

(c)  From time to time, upon the request of the City, the Local Authority provides the City or its 

authorized representative, all financial and other information required by the City in order to 

ensure the full and complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable 

law.   

(d) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, full taxes shall be paid based upon the 

assessed value of the properties comprising the project and the applicable property rate in 

effect as such time. 

Neither the Local Authority nor any successor-in-interest to the Local Authority with respect to 

this Agreement and the property comprising the project shall apply for, accept or utilize any 

incentive, credit, abatement, offset, rebate, refund or other program that would result in the 

reduction or elimination of (a) the full assessed value of the said property, any other real estate 

owned by the Local Authority which is subject to this Agreement; and (b) real estate taxes due and 

payable to the City based upon the full assessed value of the property identified in subsection (a) of 

this paragraph, and any improvements within the property identified in said subsection (a).  

Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit the Local 

Authority from taking full advantage of any program that would result in a reduction or elimination 

of the Local Authority or its successor-in-interest’s real estate taxes that are due and payable to any 

entity other than the City with regard to the aforesaid property and any other real estate in the area 

which is subject to the terms of this Agreement.   

(4) During the period commencing with the date of acquisition of any part of the site or sites of any 

project and continuing so long as either (a) such project is used for low-rent housing purposes, or 

(b) any contract between Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans or annual contributions, or 

both, with respect to such project shall remain in force and effect, or (c) any bonds issued in 

connection with such project shall remain outstanding; whichever period is the longest, the City, 

without cost or charge to the Local Authority or the tenants of such project (other than the 

payments in lieu of taxes) shall; 

 

(a)  Furnish or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority and the tenants of such project (i) the 

public services and facilities which are at the date hereof being furnished without cost or 

charge to other dwellings and inhabitants in the City, including but not limited to: fire, police 

and health protection and services; maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys, 

sidewalks, sewer and water systems; snow removal; garbage and trash collection and 

disposal; street lighting on public streets within such projects and on the boundaries thereof; 

and adequate sewer services for such project; and (ii) also such additional public services and 

facilities as may from time-to-time hereafter be furnished without cost or charge to other 

dwellings and inhabitants in City; 

 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 4 of 5 

Jane Frazier Village 

 

 

 

(b) Insofar as the City may lawfully do so, and subject to City policies, without waiving its right 

to exercise discretion when applicable law allows for the exercise of such discretion, grant 

such waivers of the building code of the City as are reasonable and necessary to promote 

economy and efficiency in the development and administration of such project; 

 

(c) Accept grants of easements necessary for the development of such project, provided they are 

not contrary to the City’s interests; and 

 

(d)  Cooperate with the Local Authority by such other lawful action or ways as the City and the 

Local Authority may find necessary in connection with the development and administration 

of such project, provided they are not contrary to the City’s interests 

 

(5) The City recognizes the stringent physical inspection process HUD/DHCD requires the Local 

Authority to execute on a regular basis.  The City further recognizes that HUD/DHCD’s physical 

inspection requirements are equal to or more stringent than the standards required by City Code.  

Therefore, the Local Authority shall not be subject to the City’s rental inspection requirements so 

long as HUD/DHCD’s inspection standards are at least equal to or more stringent than the 

standards required by City Code.  Notwithstanding this provision, City will be permitted to 

perform an inspection at any time upon the provision of no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice.   

 

(6) If the City shall, within a reasonable time after written notice from the Local Authority, fail or 

refuse to furnish or cause to be furnished any of the services or facilities which it is obligated 

hereunder to furnish, or cause to be furnished to the Local Authority, or to any project, then the 

Local Authority may proceed to obtain such services or facilities elsewhere, and deduct the cost 

thereof from any payments in lieu of taxes due or to become due to the City in respect to any 

project or any other low-rent housing projects assisted or owned by HUD/DHCD. 

 

(7) No co-operation agreement heretofore entered into between the City and the Local Authority or the 

Local Authority shall be construed to apply to any project covered by this Agreement. 

 

(8) So long as any contract between the Local Authority and HUD/DHCD for loans (including 

preliminary loans) or annual contributions, or both, with respect to any project shall remain in force 

and effect, or so long as any bonds issued in connection with such project shall remain outstanding, 

this Agreement shall not be abrogated, changed, or modified without the consent of HUD/DHCD. 

The privileges and obligations of the City hereunder shall remain in full force and effect with 

respect to each project so long as the beneficial title to such project is held by the Local Authority 

or some other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD, authorized by law to 

engage in the development or administration of low-rent housing projects. If at any time the 

beneficial title to, or possession of, any project is held by such other public body or governmental 

agency, including HUD/DHCD, the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and may be 

enforced by such other public body or governmental agency, including HUD/DHCD. 

 

(9) This Agreement shall not be subject to assignment without the written consent of the City, which 

consent may be withheld for any reason or no reason at all. 

 

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, and any 

action to enforce this Agreement shall be brought to the Circuit Court for Allegany County, 



Cooperation Agreement  Page 5 of 5 

Jane Frazier Village 

 

 

 

Maryland.  The parties waive the right to assert that this court lacks jurisdiction over the matter or 

that it constitutes an inconvenient forum. 

(11) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicable federal, state and municipal laws and regulations 

relative to its subject matter. 

(12) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

 

(13) This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement among the parties, and no 

amendments thereto shall be valid, except in writing and duly approved and executed by the parties 

hereto. 

 
(14) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an 

original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 

In witness whereof, the City and the Local Authority have respectively caused this agreement to 

be duly executed as of the day and year first above-written. 

 

 

WITNESS: THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

CITY OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND 

 

  

______________________________ By: __________________________________ 

       STEVEN J. KESNER 

       President/Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

 

 

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

       RAYMOND M. MORRISS 

       Mayor 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Letter from Terri Ann Lowery requesting permission to hold the 2019 Great Allegany Run 

(GAR) on Saturday, October 5, 2019 

  

























Item Attachment Documents: 

 

2. Letter from Bonita Austin on behalf of the Carver Community Center Board of Directors 

requesting a property tax waiver for the 2019-2020 tax year for property owned by Carver 

Community Center at 340 Frederick Street 

  









Item Attachment Documents: 

 

3. Letter from Sean and Kristie Thomas requesting to hold the 70th Annual South Cumberland 

Halloween Parade on Wednesday, October 30, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 

  




	Top
	1. Closed - East Side
	2. Closed - Ex Session
	1. Open Session
	1. Statement - Closed meetings July 30 Aug 13
	1. Presentation - Certificate to Kyle Blake
	. Engineering July Monthly Report
	2019-7 Eng Div Monthly Report

	. Report - Maintenance Division Monthly Reports - June & July, 2019
	Maint Division Report June &amp; July 2019

	. Report - Fire Department Monthly Report - July, 2019
	SKM_C25819080609490

	. Report - Utilities-Plants & C. Services Monthly Reports - June 2019
	Utilities-Plants &amp; C. Services Reports-June 2019

	1. Minutes - Closed Session Minutes of June 4, 2019
	ExecSessMinPage-6-4-19 for upload to Muni

	2. MInutes - Work Session Minutes-May 29, 2019
	2019-05-29 Work Session Minutes

	3. Minutes - Special Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2019
	Special Meeting Minutes Document 6-11-19

	. Resolution R2019-03 - Cumberland Outdoor Club Tax Credit 2019-2020
	CumbOutdoorClub tax credit 2019-2020-datechange
	Outdoor Club Request Letter

	. Resolution R-2019-04 - Allegany County Animal Shelter Mgmt. Foundation, Tax Years 2016-2020
	Resolution - Animal Shelter
	Animal Shelter Request letter-tax credit

	. Ordinance 3858 - CDA Bond
	Ordinance 3858 DOCS-#212960-v2-2019_Cumberland_CDA_Ordinance (1)

	. Order No. 26,488 - STD Tax Exemption-15 S. Liberty St.
	2019-08-06 STD exemption-Lepley-datechange
	STD request letter-Lepley

	. Order No. 26,489 - Employee Handbook Revision
	2019-08-06 Order 26489 Employee Handbook revision-datechange
	2019-08-06 Order 26489 Employee Handbook revision

	. Order No. 26,490 - Godfrey Housing Authority
	2019-08-06 Order 26490 Godfrey Housing Authority-datechange
	Godfrey Housing Authority Letter

	. Order No. 26,491 - Abate Taxes & Utilities, 607 Maryland Ave.
	2019-08-06 Abate taxes-util. 607 MD Ave-datechange

	. Order No. 26,492 - Certificate of Satisfaction 13 Penn. Ave., Metz
	2019-08-06 Certificate of Satisfaction-Metz-datechange
	CLVI Deed of Trust 13 Pennsylvania Avenue (1)
	13 Pennsylvania Avenue- Cert Sat (1)

	. Order No. 26,493 - Certificate of Satisfaction-304 Virginia Ave, Derlan
	2019-08-06 Certificate of Satisfaction 304 VAAve-Derlan-datechange
	304 Virginia Ave CLVI Deed of Trust
	304 Virginia Avenue- Cert Sat

	. Order No. 26,494 - Certificate of Satisfaction, 114-116 Oak St., McElfish
	2019-08-06 Order26494Certificate of Satisfaction-McElfish-datechange
	114-116 Oak Street CLVI Deed of Trust
	114-116 Oak Street- Cert Sat

	. Order No. 26,495 - Certificate of Satisfaction-McDonald
	Order-CertofSatisf-SpringdaleSt-McDonald-datechange

	. Order No. 26,496 - Certificate of Satisfaction-Moon, 208-210 VA Ave
	Order 26496 & Cert. of Satis.-Va Ave Moon-datechange

	. Order  No. 26,497-STD Tax Exemption-27 N. Centre
	STD exemption request-Saville
	2019-08-13 Order 26497 STD exemption-Saville

	. Order No. 26,498 - 2019/2020 Tax Abatements-City-owned Properties
	2019-08-13 Order 26498 Abate taxes -celltowers-Bish Wlsh Elenr Terr Senc Ave
	CellTowerAbatements

	. Order No. 26,499 - Tax Abatements-City-owned Properties for 2019
	2019-08-13 Order 26499 Tax abatements
	City-ownedTaxAbatements-backup

	. Order No. 26,500 - Sole Source, Reciprocating Skimmer Systems, WFP
	2019-08-13 Order 26500 Sole Source XylemWaterSolutions-WFP
	Purchase Proposal for two Skimmer Systems
	Sole Source Approval - two Skimmer Systems WFP

	. Order No. 26,501 - Sole Source T.E. Byerly-Metering Pumps-WFP
	Purchase Purposal - 9 Chemical Metering Pumps
	Sole Source Approval - 9 Metering Pumps
	2019-08-13 Order 26501 Sole Source-TE Byerly Co-WFP

	. Order No. 26,502-YMCA Imps Permit Fees Waived
	YMCA Fee Waiver Request Letter
	2019-08-13 Order 26502 YMCA permit fees waiver

	. Order No. 26,503 Permit Fees Waived -Cumberland Housing Group
	CumbHousingGroup Fee Waiver Request Letter
	2019-08-13 Order 26503 CHG permit fees waiver

	. Order No. 26,504-Surplus Vehicle 2004 Crown Vic.
	2019-08-13 Order 26504 Surplus 2004 Ford Crown Vic

	. Order No. 26,505 - Agreement with Contractor Leonard S. Fiore for CSO Storage Facility at WWTP.
	2019-08-13 Order 26505 L S Fiore extention letter
	1-10-WWTP Revised Substantial Completion Letter to LSF
	LSF Agreement for Reimbursement Agenda Sheet

	. Order No. 26,506 - EADS Change Order - Baltimore St
	2019-08-13 Order 26,506 EADS change Order
	190530_Baltimore Street Engineering Fee Changes and Schedule
	Agenda Detail Sheet

	. Order No. 26507 - Change Order No. 5 Leonard S. Fiore CSO Storage Facility
	2019-08-13 Order 26,507 Change Order 5 - Fiore
	Change Order 5 Form
	Agenda Item Sheet Change Order No. 5

	. Order 26508 - Cumberland Housing Agreements
	Order 26426
	2019-08-13 Order 26508 Housing Authority Agreements
	Cumberland Housing Authority Letter
	BG City Cooperation Agreement (1)
	QCT City Cooperation Agreement
	WV City Cooperation Agreement
	FCH City Cooperation Agreement (1)
	JFK City Cooperation Agreement
	City Wills Creek View Agreement (1)
	City River Bend Court Agreement (1)
	JFV City Cooperation Agreement

	1. Letter - GAR
	Great Allegany Run
	GAR Route Narrative

	2. Letter - Carver Community Center -Tax Waiver Request
	Letter-Carver Comm.Ctr-tax waiver request

	3. Letter - South Cumberland Halloween Parade
	Letter - Cumberland Halloween Parade Request

	Bottom

